Cabazon Water District | 1
November 19, 2019 FAC Meeting Agenda

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street + P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING
AGENDA

Meeting Location:
Cabazon Water District Office

14618 Broadway Street
Cabazon, California 92230
Meeting Date:
Tuesday, November 19, 2019 - 5:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER,
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,
ROLL CALL
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

1. Discussion: Finance & Audit Committee Report

» Balance Sheet
» Profit and Loss Budget Comparison

2. Finance & Audit Committee District Payables Review and Approval/Signing

PUBLIC COMMENT

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cahazon Water District, however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff for investigation and
reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from discussing or
taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on specific agenda items, please
advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to three (3) minutes.
Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the speaker will be
notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 53232.3(d))

ADJOURNMENT

ADA Compliance lssues
in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to
participate in a Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Nolification of at least 48 hours prior to
meeting time will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting.

Business (951) 849-4442 + FAX (951) 849-2519




Cabazon Water District | 1
November 19, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Agenda

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street « P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
AGENDA

Meeting Location:
Cahazon Water District Office

14618 Broadway Street
Cabazon, California 92230
Meeting Date:
Tuesday, November 19, 2019 - 6:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
REMEMBRANCE OF OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN
ROLL CALL
CONSENT CALENDAR

Al matters in this category are considered to be consistent with the Board/District goals, District Policies and
Regulations adopted and/or approved by the Board of Directors, and will be enacted in one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items. If discussion is required, items may be removed from the consent calendar and
will be considered separately.

1. Approval of:
a. Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and Warrants approved by the committes on
October 14, 2019
b. Regular Board Meeting Minutes and Warrants of October 14, 2019

2. Warrants - None
3. Awards of Contracts — None

UPDATES
1. Update: San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Update
(by Director Davis)
2. Update: Manager’s Operations Report
(by GM Louie)

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519




Cabazon Water District | 2
November 19, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Agenda

CLOSED SESSION

(1) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Potential Litigation vs. Cabazon Water District (1 case)

NEW BUSINESS
1. Discussion/Action: Customer Concern: Water Usage on Marino St. - Salvador Flores
2. Discussion/Action: User Fee Study (District incident fees and charges, etc.): Presentation and

adoption of suggested fee adjustments. (by NBS)

3. Discussion/Action: Review and approval of the Fiscal Year (FY} 2018-2019 Audited Financial
Statements (by Fedak and Brown)

4. Discussion/Action: Automatic Rate Adjustment/District Meter and Water Usage Charges
(Director Wargo and Israel)

5. DiscussionfAction: LAIF Transfer Request (transfer from the District’s LAIF account to the
District’s General account in order to pay for the Tank/Well #1 repairs and
maintenance} (by AGM Lemus)

6. DiscussionfAction: Approval of RESOLUTION 2019-03: Authorizing the GM to Accept Interest
in Real Property on Behalf of CWD. (by AGM Lemus)

OLD BUSINESS
1. Discussion/Action: Fire Suppression System Installation and Meter Charges (by Director Lynk)

2. Discussion: Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) Update
(by GM Louie)

Prop 1 IRWM Implementation Grant Program Pre-application Workshop
updates.

SGP GSP Kickoff meeting updates.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited
by law from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to
three (3} minutes. Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the
speaker will be notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS {Gov. Code Sec.
53232.3(d))

GENERAL MANAGER/BOARD COMMENTS

1. Fufure Agenda ltems

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519




Cabazon Water District
November 19, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Agenda

The Board Chair or the majority of the Board may direct staff to investigate and report back to an
individual{s) and the Board on matters suggested or direct the General Manager/Board Secretary fo
place the matter on a future Board meeting.

» Suggested agenda items from the Pubilic.
« Suggested agenda items from Management.
o Suggested agenda items from Board Members.

2. Management Comments

Staff members may speak on items of information nof requiring comment or discussion {o the Board
and public. Topics which may be included on a future meeting agenda may be presented but cannot
he discussed. (3 minutes)

3. Board Member Comments

Board members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the
Board and public. (3 minutes)

MISCELLANEOUS
1. Future Board ltems/Next Board Meeting Date(s)

a. Finance & Audit Workshop - Tuesday — December 17, 2019, 5:00 pm

b. Regular Board Meefing - Tuesday — December 17, 2019, 6:00 pm

c. Personnel Committee — None

d. San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance - Alliance Meeting - Wednesday -

ADJOURNMENT

ADA Compliance Issugs

In compliance with the Americans with Disabfiities Act & Government Cade Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed fo participate in a
Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Notification of af least 48 hours prior to meeling fime will assist staff
In assuring that reasonable arrangements can be mada to provide access.

Business (951) 849-4442 » FAX (951) 849-2519

3




Cabazon Water District

October 14, 2019 FAC Meeting Minutes

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street « P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING
MINUTES

Meeting Location:
Cabazon Water District Office

14618 Broadway Street
Cabazon, California 92230
Meeting Date:
Monday, October 14, 2019 - 5:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER,
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,
ROLL CALL

Director Wargo - Present
Director Israel - Present

Calvin Louie (General Manager} - Present
Elizabeth Lemus, Board Secretary - Present
Cindy Byerrum, Financial Consultant - Absent

*Note: This meeting was recorded by the District - yes

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
1. Discussion: Finance & Audit Committee Report

* Balance Sheet
e Profit and Loss Budget Comparison

Balance Sheet:

The District's combined Cash with Chase and LAIF balance was $959,263 at month end. The

District's total liabilities were approximately $1.046 million at month end.

Profit and Loss:

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

1




Cabazon Water District | 2
October 14, 2019 FAC Meeting Minutes

» Standby Fees: The bulk of these receipts often occur around January and April and can occasionally cause
YTD to trend over/under budget.
» Total Operating Income: outlines the total revenues earned from District operations. YTD is trending on
target at 25%.
» Engineering Services: YTD is at 50% due several invoices from Krieger & Stewart in September including
$11.4K refating to Standby Fees.
o Total Facilities, Wells, T&D: Summarizes total operating expense relating to facilities, wells, fransmission &
distribution. YTD is trending belfow target at 18%.
« Total Utilities — Office: Summarizes total utilities expense for the District office. YTD is trending near target
at 26%.
« CA Water System Alliance: Includes monthly membership fees for the Water System Alliance. YTD is
trending on target at 25%.
Office Expenses - Other: Includes miscellaneous office expenses. YTD is frending below target at 20%,.
Total Office Expenses; Summarizes total District office expenses. YTD is trending below target at 21%.
Website Support: YTD is at 33% due fo fiming of website support expenses.
Other Fees/SWRCB: YTD s at 50% due fo timing of Riverside County Fees. Blanket Encroachment Permit
($2K) & Annual LAFCO fees were paid in July.

As of September 30th, the fiscal year-to-date net income is $49,592.
2. Finance & Audit Committee District Payables Review and Approval/Signing

PUBLIC COMMENT

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff for investigation and
reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from discussing or
taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on specific agenda items, please
advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to three (3) minutes.
Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two {2) minutes, the speaker will be
notified that he/she has one (1} minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 53232.3(d))

ADJOURNMENT
Motion to adjourn at 17:12 hr. made by Director Israel and 2 by Director Wargo.

Director Wargo - Aye
Director Israel - Aye

Meeting adjourned at 17:12 hr. on Tuesday, October 14, 2019

Robert Lynk, Board Chair Elizabeth Lemus, Secretary
Board of Directors Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District Cabazon Water District

ADA Gompliance Issues
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed fo
participate in a Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to
meeting time will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519




Cabazon Water District | 1
October 14, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street « P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
MINUTES

Meeting Location:
(abazon Water District Office

14618 Broadway Street
Cabazon, California 92230
Meeting Date:
October 14, 2019 - 6:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
REMEMBRANCE OF OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN
ROLL CALL

Director Martin Sanderson - Present
Director Maxine Israel - Present
Director Sarah Wargo - Present
Director Alan Davis - Present
Director Robert Lynk - Absent

Calvin Louie, General Manager - Present

Elizabeth Lemus, Board Secretary - Present

Cindy Byerrum, Financial Consultant - Absent

Steve Anderson, Best Best & Krieger Law Firm - Absent
Joseph Ortiz, Best Best & Krieger Law Firm - Absent

Note: This meeting was recorded by the District -

CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters in this category are considered to be consistent with the Board/District goals, District Policies and
Regulations adopted and/or approved by the Board of Directors, and will be enacted in one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items. |f discussion is required, items may be removed from the consent calendar and
will be considered separately.

1. Approval of:

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519




Cabazon Water District | 2
October 14, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

a. Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and Warrants approved by the committee
September 17, 2019
b. Regular Board Meeting Minutes and Warrants of September 17, 2019

2. Warrants - None
3. Awards of Contracts — None

Motion to approve following consent calendar item(s) (a.) Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes of
(a) September 17, 2019, and (b.}) Regular Board Meeting Minutes of September 17, 2019, made by Director
Israel and 27 by Director Wargo

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Israel - Aye
Director Wargo - Aye
Director Davis - Aye
Director Lynk - Absent

UPDATES
1. Update: San Gorgonic Pass Regional Water Alliance Update
(by Director Davis)
Some items discussed were SB 1, SB 998, and the next SGPRWA meeting.
2. Update: Manager's Operations Report
{by GM Louie}
NEW BUSINESS
OLD BUSINESS

1. Discussion/Action: Customer Concern: Victor Bustos, Los Victors Restaurant. Monthly Meter
Charge inquiry.

Motion to deny Mr. Bustos’ request for a discount on his monthly meter charges / drop this item made by
Director Israel and 2" by Directer Sanderson.

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Israel - Aye
Director Wargo - Aye
Director Davis - Aye
Director Lynk - Absent

2. Discussion/Action: Fire Suppression System Installation and Meter Charges (by Director Lynk)

Motion to table this item for the October 2019 Board Meeting {since Director Lynk was not present) made by
Director and 2" by Director .

*Note: No roll call vote was made, but it was the consensus of the Board to tabie this item until the October
Board Meeting. There were no objections voiced by either the Board or the public.

Business (951} 849-4442 + FAX (951} 849-2519




Cabazon Water District | 3
October 14, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

3. Discussion: Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) Update
(by GM Louie)

Prop 1 IRWM Implementation Grant Program Pre-application Workshop
updates.

SGP GSP Kickoff meeting updates.

4. Discussion/Action: Audio Sound System Bid (by General Manager Louie)

Props AV Audio Visual FX — Michael Betancourt
945 E. 6% Street, Beaumont, CA 92223
(Estimated $12k to $15k)

The actual quote came out to be roughly $33k; much higher than
anficipated. The Board decided to drop this item from the agenda for the
time, and if District management later found another quote for a much
lower price, management could place this item back on the agenda for
further review.

Motion to deny the proposed quote from AVSU and to drop this item from the agenda made by Director
Wargo and 2 by Director Sanderson,

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Israel - Aye
Director Wargo -« Aye
Director Davis - Aye
Director Lynk - Absent

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited
by law from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to
three (3} minutes. Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the
speaker will be notified that he/she has one (1} minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec.
53232.3(d))

GENERAL MANAGER/BOARD COMMENTS

1. Future Agenda items
The Board Chair or the majority of the Board may direct staff to investigate and report back to an
individual(s) and the Board on matters suggested or direct the General Manager/Board Secretary to
place the matter on a future Board meeting.

» Suggested agenda items from the Public.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519




Cabazon Water District
Qctober 14, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

+ Suggested agenda items from Management.
s Suggested agenda items from Board Members.
2. Management Comments
Staff members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the Board
and public. Topics which may be included on a future meeting agenda may be presented but cannot
be discussed. (3 minutes)

3. Board Member Comments

Board members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion fo the
Board and public. (3 minutes)

MISCELLANEOUS

1. Future Board Items/Next Board Meeting Date(s)

a. Finance & Audit Workshop —~ Tuesday ~ November 19, 2019, 5:00 pm

b. Regular Board Meeting -~ Tuesday — November 19, 2019, 6:00 pm

¢. Personnel Committee ~ None

d. San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance - Alliance Meeting — Wednesday — October 23, 2019

ADJOURNMENT
Motion to adjourn at 19:07 hr. made by Director Sanderson and 2 by Director Israel.

Director Sanderson - Aye
Director Israel - Aye
Director Wargo - Aye
Director Davis - Aye
Director Lynk - Absent

Meeting adjourned at 19:07 hr. on Tuesday, October 14, 2019

Robert Lynk, Board Chair Elizabeth Lemus, Secretary
Board of Directors Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District Cabazon Water District

ADA Compliance Issues

In complfance with the Americans with Disabilifies Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assisfance is needed fo participate in a
Board mecfing, please contfact the Clerk of the Board at {951) 849-4442. Notification of af least 48 hours prior to meeting time will assist staff
in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made lo provide access.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

4




Cabazon Water District

1 REVENUES

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

16
11

12

13
14
15
16
17

18

OPERATING INCOME

Base Rate - Water Bills

Commodity Sales

DHPO Contract

Fire Sales - Water Bills

Penalty Fees - Water Bills

New Account Fees - Water Bills

Returned Check Fees

Basic Facilities Fee

Stand By Fees - Tax Revenue
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME
NON-OPERATING INCOME

Property Taxes

Cell Tower Lease Income

Misc. Non-Operating Income
Interest Income

TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME

19 TOTAL REVENUES
20 EXPENSES

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
3
32

33
34

335

PAYROLL
Directors Fees
Management & Customer Service
Customer Accounts
Business Admin Manager
General Manager

Total Management & Customer Service
Field Workers
Employee Benefits Expense

Workers Comp.

Employee Health Care

Pension

Total Employee Benefits Expense
Payroll Taxes

TOTAL PAYROLL

Profit & Loss
Qctober 2019

FY 1926
Oct. 2019  Current YTD Budget YTD (33%)
72,659 $ 290,428 § 889,300 33%
30,710 140,407 320,600 44%
15,179 69,727 211,700 33%
439 1,756 3,900 45%
4,573 18,804 44,900 42%
140 480 1,800 27%
60 180 400 45%
9,306 9,306 18,900 49%
- - 113,600 0%
133,065 531,493 1,605,100 33%
505 592 60,900 1%
2,087 8,349 25,100 33%
- 6,323 - 0%
5,069 6,717 19,300 35%
7.661 21,980 105,300 21%
140,727 553,473 1,710,400 32%
2,100 4,600 20,000 23%
5,931 18,856 52,100 36%
8,504 25,698 74,700 34%
10,293 30,930 95,600 32%
24,728 75,485 222,400 34%
20,006 61,287 168,300 36%
912 3,650 6,200 59%
7,433 29,732 67,000 44%
9,142 27,870 78,300 36%
17,487 61,251 151,500 40%
3,648 11,463 33,200 35%
67,969 214,086 595,400 36%




Cabazon Water District

Profit & Loss
October 2019

FY 19/20
Oct. 2019  Current YID Budget YTD (33%)

36 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
37 Facilities, Wells, T&D

38 Lab Fees 221 1,481 8,700 17%
39 Meters - 50 4,700 1%
40 Utilities - Wells 12,290 34,984 124,000 28%
41 Line R&M Contracior - - 12,500 0%
42 Line R&M Materials 124 6,566 00,000 11%%
43 Well Maintenance 82,947 86,645 37,0600 234%
44 Security 1,421 6,021 24,800 24%
45 Grant Writing Services - - 10,000 0%
46 Engineering Services 761 23,854 46,500 51%
47 Facilities, Wells, Té&D - Other 350 960 12,400 8%
48 Total Facilities, Wells, T&D 100,026 162,679 340,600 48%
49 Utilities - Office

50 Electricity 1,365 6,773 19,000 36%
51 Gas 28 115 1,000 11%
52 Telephone 875 3,353 9,800 34%
53 Trash Pickup & Office Cleaning 369 1,475 4,500 33%
54 Total Utilities - Office 2,637 11,716 34,300 34%
55 Office Expenses

56 Water Billing System 177 709 2,100 34%
57 Supplies & Equipment 451 1,179 9,900 12%
58 Copier Lease & Printing Supplies 237 1,288 6,000 21%
39 Dues & Subscriptions - 208 4,900 4%
60 Postage 604 2,697 7,900 34%
61 Printing & Publications - 179 6,200 3%
62 Computer Services 2,903 12,669 36,800 34%
63 Office Storage 500 2,000 6,100 33%
64 Air Conditioning Servicing 418 1,672 4,900 34%
65 CA Water Systems Alliance 208 833 2,500 33%
66 Office Expenses - Other 56 641 2,900 22%
67 Total Office Expenses 5,555 24,162 90,200 27%
68 Support Services

69 Financial Audit 3,082 7,352 22,500 33%
70 Accounting 1,110 10,376 35,000 30%
71 Legal Services 1,672 28,245 52,000 54%

T2 Bank Service Charges 66 233 700 33%




Cabazon Water District

Profit & Loss
October 2019

FY 1920
Oct. 2019  Current YTD Budget YTD (33%)

73 Payroll Service 482 1,607 4,700 34%
74 Website Support 75 375 900 42%
75 General Liability Insurance 1,962 7,848 23,400 34%
76 Total Support Services 8,448 58,903 139,200 42%
77 Training/Travel 261 5,775 26,400 22%
78 Other Fees/SWRCB 2,477 6,017 7,100 85%
79 Service Tools & Equipment

80 Shop Supplies and Small Tools - 2,919 8,700 34%
81 Vehicle Fuel 1,993 4,614 16,600 28%
82 Employee Uniforms 243 243 1,800 13%
83 Safety - - 500 0%
34 Tractor Expenses - 177 7.500 2%
85 Equipment Rental - - 2,000 0%
86 Service Trucks - R&M 1,480 2,308 14,200 16%
87 Water Ops Phone & Internet 194 783 2,400 33%
88 Total Service Tools & Equipment 3,910 11,045 55,700 20%
89 NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

90 Grant & Loan Processing Fee 1,325 1,325 1,400 95%
91 DWR Interest Expense 4,719 4,719 9,100 52%
92 DHPO Interest Expense - 4,174 7,900 53%
93 Bad Debt Expense - - 1,200 0%
94 Miscellaneous - [15 1,100 0%
95  TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 6,044 10,333 20,700 50%
96 TOTAL EXPENSES 197,327 504,715 1,309,600 39%
97 TOTAL INCOME. BEFORE CAPITAL & GSA (56,600) 48,758 400,800 12%
98 DHPO Capacity Credit (1,750 {7,000) (21,000) 33%
99 CAPITAL PROJECTS
100 Main Street Improvements (Icehouse Imp.) - - (30,000) 0%
10 Meter Replacements & Other Capital - {2,133) (22,000) 10%
102 New Vehicle Purchase - - (37,000) 0%
103 TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS - {2,133) (89,000) 2%
104 DEBT - PRINCIPAL

105 Debt Service Principal - DWR (19,627) (19,627) (39,600) 50%
106 Debt Service Principal - DHPO (Zion) - (40,423) (80,800) 50%
107 TOTALDEBT - PRINCIPAL (19,627) (60,050) (120,400) 50%
108 SGMA /GSA (941) {8,899) (60,000) 15%
109 NET INCOME / (LOSS) §  (78917) §  (29,325) § 110,400 -27%

No assurance is provided on these financial statements.
The financial statements do not include a siatement of cash flows.
Substantially all disclosures requirved by accounting prineiples generally accepted in the Uniied States are not inclided.




1 ASSETS

N2 ST -1 W e B

e S
L T e

16
17
i8
i9
20
21
2
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32

35
36
37
38
39
40
41
4
43
44
45

Current Assets

Cabazon Water Distriet

Balance Sheet
Qctober 31, 2019

Checking/Savings
General Bank Account-Chase

Payroll

Bank Account-Chase

Trust Account-Chase (Cust. Depaosits)
Local Petty Cash
Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivable

LAIF

Bank of NY Trustee Accounts
Prepaid Expenses
Inventory Total

Total Other Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Total Current Assets

Construction in Process
CIP Cabazon Outlets Expansion
CIP Super Map
CIP 50100 Main St. Property
Total Construction in Process
Tools and Equipment

Source of Supply

Transmission & Distribution
Buildings & Structures

Water Treatment

Office Furniture and Equipment
[ntangible Plant

Vehicles
Land

Accumulated Depreciation
Total Fixed Assets
33 TOTAL ASSETS
34 LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Other Cwrvent Liabilities

Custamer Peposits - Co 1
Customer Deposits - Co 2

Total Customer Deposits
Accrued Vacation Pay
DWR-HS Payable - Current
Current Pottion Zion's Bank Ln
Accrued Payroll

Oct. 31, 19

8 63,557
71,896

10,639

100

146,192
211,921
734,378

54,083
21.200.18
104,142

1,125,725

1,281,507

9,692
26,463
115,053

151,208
123,319
1,552,226
10,316,395
12,281
8,800
71,808
(1,032
114,728
689,548

(5,672,996)

7,378,349

5 8,659,855

$ 30,350

5,473
4,234

9,708
13,352
39,550
80,847

7,450




Cabazon Water District

Balance Sheet
October 31, 2019

Oct. 31, 19

46 Accrued Payroll Taxes 554
47 Accrued Interest 4,449
48 Accrued Expenses 8,129
49 Employee Deductions 143
50 Total Other Current Liabilities 164,183
51 Total Current Liabilities 194,534
52 Long Term Liabilities

33 DWR-H Loan Payable {Payoft26) 278,950
54 Zion's Bank Long Term (2023) 254,898
55 RCEDA Loan Payable 300,000
56 Total Long Term Liabilities 833,848
57 Total Liabilities 1,028,382
58 Total Equity 7,631,473

59 TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3 8,659,855




MEMORANDUM

DATE: November 12, 2019

TO: The Cabazon Water District Board of Directors

FROM: Ellie Lemus, AGM

SUBJ: Marino St. — Mr. Salvador Flores, Acct. 3-14744F, Location No. 3-526191021

Dear Board of Directors,
The following is a statement of facts concerning Mr. Flores’ account:
» Customer is complaining of high water usage.
» Meter has been replaced in 2013, 2015, and 2019 (newer meters read more accurately).

¢ Regarding the most recent water meter changeout, the meter was tested and showed
that it was only reading 60% of the low-flow water usage (it was under-reading), and was
reading 101% and 103% for medium and high flow water usage (was very slightly over-
reading). It still should not be reading enough to cause water bills of such high usage.

¢ A water usage trend can be seen from 2017 through today.

+ Meter was recently changed out, and water usage has been much less. Not sure if there
was a leak or a change in habitual water usage. Meter does not appear to be spinning
(an indicator that there may not be a leak).

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street
PC Box 297
Cabazon, CA 92230
www.cabazonwater.org
Bus. (951) 849-4442 Fax (951) 849 2519




14-618 Broadway Street
P.O. Box 297, Cabazon, Ca. 92230

Qctober 31, 2019

Salvador Flores

I T Street
Acct; 13-14744F
Meter No: 231881

RE: Meter Change-out
Mr, Flores,

Attached please find the calibration results of the meter #231881 removed from your
property October16, 2019 to be tested. The meter tested within specifications (it reads
correctly).

Enclosed is a copy of the test. We will keep the new meter in unless you would like the
old one put back in.

If you have any question, please contact us at (951)849-4442.

Sincerely,
Ellen Koumparis
Customer Sales Representative




WOO BSISUUSZ MMM 7788-6¥8-156 0TTTE VO Burueq ‘S68 xod "0"d VS YANNHZ

61/60/01 =g 2Ieusig

ISIUQUINIO))

% €09 WdD v/l -MO[ MO]
1661¢ % 1101 WdD (4 -M0[A PN
ezIedsy ZopurWioy [oNTRIA] Agpasal % 1601 WdD  S1 MO YSTH

40 $/€ X 8/% # IZIg ogze  diz 49 pes
1881€200 “# [BLRS wozeqe) A1)
FdIX-IDCONIN # PPPOIN L6TXOHd Od  :SSRIppy
VANNAZ RINoeJauwe]A] ILSIC] e AUno)) wozeqe)  (IOTIOISTL)

1S9 POYIIRD

€09¢ "ON uonensisay
semseaN 79 SIS M Jo Jmunredaq

*53UNe3 18yl :q BIOIOI[ED) JO 21818

PN




Cabazon County Water District

Customer Transaction Summary
k'gstomer Information Location Information

Account No: 3-14744F Location No: 3-526191021

SALVADOR FLORES MARINO

P.O. BO. CABAZON, CA 92230-

CABAZON, CA 92230- .

Transaction

Date Type More Info Reading Usage Prior Balance Amount Balance
01/01/2017 Payment CASH 446.41 -50.00 396.41
01/11/2017 Misc - TAG 396.41 10.00 406.41
01/17/2017 Payment CASH 406.41 -100.00 306.41
01/23/2017 Penalty 306.41 5.52 31193
01/23/2017 Interest 311.93 3.86 315.79
01/31/2017 Charge 01/12/2017 23900 1200 315.79 59.63 375.42
02/21/2017 Penalty 375.42 5.96 381.38
02/21/2017 Interest 381.38 476 386.14
02/28/2017 Charge 02/09/2017 24900 1000 386.14 55.21 441.35
03/01/2017 Payment CASH 441.35 -100.00 341.35
03/21/2017 Penalty 341.35 5.52 346.87
03/21/2017 Interest 346.87 4.34 351.21
03/29/2017 Payment CASH 351.21 -50.00 301.21
03/30/2017 Charge 03/13/2017 25800 940 301.21 53.00 354.21
04/10/2017 Payment CASH 354.21 -50,00 304,21
04/24/2017 Penalty 304.21 5.30 309.51
04/24/2017 Interest 309.51 3.79 313.30
04 ""1{’2017 Payment CASH 313.30 -50.00 263,30
¢ o7 Charge 04/12/2017 28400 2600 263.30 9272 356.02
05/23/2017 Payment CASH 356.02 -100.00 256,02
05/3172017 Charge 05/11/2017 31200 2800 256,02 130,53 386.55
06/13/2017 Payment CASH 386.55 -50.00 336.55
06/21/2017 Penalty 336.55 13.05 349.60
06/21/2017 Interest 349,60 4,76 354.36
06/29/2017 Charge 06/12/2017 34500 3300 354.36 149.73 304.09
07/2472017 Penalty 504.09 14.97 519.06
0772472017 Interest 519.06 7.01 526.07
0772472017 Payment CHECK 526.07 -100.00 426.07
07/31/2017 Charge 07/12/2017 39500 5000 426,07 215,01 641.08
08/17/2017 Payment CHECK 641,08 -250.00 391.08
08/21/2017 Penalty 391.08 21.50 412,58
08/21/2017 Interest 412,58 547 418.05
08/23/2017 Return Chk 418.05 250.00 668.05
08/23/2017 Misc - RET 668,05 30.00 698.05
08/28/2017 Payment CASH 698.05 -280.00 418.05
08/29/2017 Payment CHECK 418.05 -418.05 0.00
08/31/2017 Charge 08/10/2017 42500 3000 0.00 138.21 138.21
09/21/2017 Penalty 138.21 13.82 152.03
09/21/2017 Interest 152.03 2.07 154,10
09/28/2017 Charge 09/0712017 45500 3000 154,10 138.21 292,31
10/12/2017 Misc - TAG 292.31 10.00 302.31
104 4/2017 Payment CASH 302.31 -100.00 202.31
1 2017 Interest 202,31 2.65 204.96
10/23/2017 Penalty 204.96 13.82 218.78
10/31/2017 Charge 10/09/2017 48100 2600 218.78 122.85 341.63
11/13/2017 Misc - TAG 341.63 10.00 351.63
11/12/2019 10:27:48 AM I = First Bill L = Final Biil U = Unclosed Transaction Page 1




stomer Information
Account No: 3-14744F

Cabazon County Water District

Customer Transaction Summary

Location Information
Location No: 3-526191021

SALVADOCR FLLORES MARING

P.O. BOX CABAZON, CA 92230-

CABAZON, CA 92230- )

Transaction

Date Type More Info Reading Usage Prior Balance Amount Balance
18/1572017 Misc - TG2 351.63 10.00 361.63
18/15/2017 Misc - RCF 361.63 50.00 411.63
11/15/2017 Payment CASH 411.63 -280.00 131.63
1172172017 Penalty 131.63 6.16 137.79
117212017 Interest 137.79 0.92 138.71
11/30/2017 Charge 18/09/2017 51500 3400 138.71 153.57 252.28
12/07/2017 Return Chk 292.28 418.05 710.33
12/07/2017 Misc - RET 710.33 30.00 740.33
12/1172017 Payment CASH 740.33 -400.00 340.33
12/14/2087 Payment CASH 340.33 -100.00 240.33
12/21/2017 Penalty 240.33 13.08 253.41
12/21/2017 Interest 253.41 1.96 255.37
12/27/2017 Payment CASH 25537 -70.00 185.37
12/28/2017 Charge 12/11/2017 55300 3800 185.37 168.93 354.30
01/11/2018 Misc - TAG 354.30 10.00 364.30
01/16/2018 Misc - TG2 364.30 10.00 374.30
01/16/2018 Payment CHECK. 374.30 -140.00 234.30
0* 4/2018 Misc - RCF 234.30 50.00 284.30
¢ 2018 Penalty 284.30 16.89 301.1%
01/22/2018 Interest 301.19 2,53 303.72
01/29/2018 Payment CASH 303.72 -60.00 243.72
01/31/2018 Charge 01/10/2018 58000 2700 24372 14575 389.47
02/14/2018 Misc - TAG 389.47 10.00 399.47
02/20/2018 Payment CHECK 399.47 -200.00 199.47
02/20/2018 Misc - TG2 195.47 10.00 209.47
02/21/2018 Penalty 20047 14.58 224.05
02/21/2018 Interest 224.05 2.19 226.24
0272172018 Misc - RCF 226.24 50.00 276.24
02/26/2018 Payment CHECK 276.24 -200.00 76.24
02/26/2018 Payment CASH 76.24 -100.00 -23.76
02/28/2018 Charge 02/12/2018 59900 1900 -23.76 110.39 86.63
03/21/2018 Penalty 86.63 8.66 95.29
03/21/2018 Interest 95.29 1.30 96.59
(3/27/2018 Adjustment 96.59 0.00 96.59
03/29/2018 Charge 03/13/2018 61100 1200 96.59 82.51 179.10
04/02/2018 Payment CASH 179.10 -100.00 79.10
04/23/2018 Penalty 79.10 791 87.01
04/23/2018 Interest 87.01 1.19 88.20
04/30/2018 Charge 04/12/2018 63300 2200 88.20 123.65 211.85
05/14/2018 Misc - TAG 211.85 10.00 221.85
05/15/2018 Payment CASH 221.85 -100.00 121.85
05"1/2018 Penalty 121.85 1119 133.04
( 2018 Interest 133.04 1.68 134.72
05/31/2018 Charge 05/14/2018 65400 2100 134.72 119.23 253.95
06/14/2018 Misc - TAG 253.95 10.00 263.95
06/18/2018 Payment CHECK 263.95 -125.00 138.95

11/12/2019 10:27:48 AM

F = First Bill

L = Final Bill

U = Unclosed Transaction

Page




Cabazon County Water District

Customer Transaction Summary

}stomer Information I.ocation Information

Account No: 3-14744F Location No: 3-526191021

SALVADOR FLORES AARINO

P.O, BO¥ . CABAZON, CA 92230-

CABAZON, CA 92230- _

Transaction

Date Type More Info Reading Usage Prior Balance Amount Balance
06/18/2018 Payment CASH 138.95 -60.00 78.95
06/21/2018 Penalty 78.95 6.90 85.85
06/21/2018 Interest 85.85 1.03 86.88
06/28/2018 Charge 06/13/2018 67800 2400 86.88 132.49 219.37
07/11/2018 Misc - TAG 219.37 10.00 229,37
07/11/2018 Payment CASH 229.37 -100.00 129.37
07/23/2018 Penalty 129.37 11.94 141.31
07/23/2018 Tnterest 141,31 1.79 143.10
07/30/2018 Charge 07/12/2018 71200 3400 143.10 176.69 319.79
08/15/2018 Misc - TAG 319.79 10.00 329.79
08/20/2018 Misc - TG2 329.79 10.00 339.79
08/20/2018 Payment CASH 339.79 -200.00 139.79
08/20/2018 Payment CHECK 139.79 -139.79 0.00
08/30/2018 Charge 08/09/2018 74700 3500 0.00 181.11 181.11
09/24/2018 Penalty 181.11 18.11 199.22
09/24/2018 Interest 199,22 2.72 201,94
09/27/2018 Charge 09/10/2018 78500 3800 201.94 194.37 396.31
17072018 Misc - TAG 396.31 10.00 406.31
L 2018 Payment CASH 406.31 -50.00 35631
10/17/2018 Misc - TG2 356.31 10.00 366.31
10/17/2018 Payment CASH 366.31 -151.94 214.37
10/22/2018 Penalty 214,37 19.44 233.81
10/22/2018 Interest 233.81 2.92 236.73
10/22/2018 Payment CASH 236.73 -50.00 186.73
10/31/2018 Charge 10/11/2018 82000 3500 186.73 181.11 367.84
11/13/2018 Payment CASH 367.84 ~100.00 267.84
11/21/2018 Penalty 267.84 18.11 28595
11/21/2018 Interest 285.95 3.38 289.33
11/29/2018 Charge 11/08/2018 84900 2900 289.33 154.59 443,92
12/10/2018 Payment CASH 443.92 ~50.00 393.92
12/13/2018 Misc - TAG 393.92 10.00 403.92
12/13/2018 Payment CHECK 403,92 -100.00 303.92
12/17/2018 Payment CHECK 303.92 -230.00 73.92
12/26/2018 Penalty 73.92 6.39 80.31
12/26/2018 Interest 30.31 (.56 81.27
12/31/2018 Charge 12/10/2018 87700 2800 81.27 150.17 231.44
01/10/2019 Misc - TAG 231.44 10.00 241.44
01/14/2019 Payment CHECK 241.44 -100.00 141.44
01/22/2019 Penalty 141.44 13.14 154.58
01/22/2019 Interest 154,58 1.97 156.55
01/30/2019 Charge 01/10/2019 89700 2000 156.55 120.62 27717
71 4/2019 Misc - TAG 277.17 10.00 287.17
¢ 1019 Payment CHECK 287.17 ~100.00 187.17
02/21/2019 Penalty 187.17 12.06 199.23
02/21/2019 Interest 199.23 2.28 201.51
02/28/2019 Charge 02/11/2619 91400 1760 201,51 106.70 308.21

11/12/2019 10:27:48 AM F =First Bill L = [inal Bill U = Unclosed Transaction Page




: “"gstomer Information
Account No: 3-14744F

Cabazon County Water District

Customer Transaction Summary

Lacation Information
Location No: 3-526191021

SALVADOR FLORES MARINO
P.O. BO¥, CABAZON, CA 92230-
CABAZON, CA 92230- )
Transaction
Date Type More Info Reading Usage Prior Balance Amount Balance
03/14/2019 Misc - TAG 308.21 10.00 318.21
03/18/2019 Payment CHECK 318.21 -100.00 218.21
03/18/2019 Payment CASH 218.21 -41.00 177.21
03/21/2019 Penalty 177.21 10.67 187.88
03/21/2019 Interest 187.88 2.14 190.02
03/27/2019 Charge 03/13/2019 92400 1000 190.02 80.62 270.64
04/11/2019 Misc - TAG 270.64 10.00 280.64
04/15/2019 Payment CASIH 280.64 ~100.00 180.64
04/16/2019 Payment CASH 180.64 -50.75 129.89
04/22/2019 Penalty 129,89 8.06 137.95
04/22/2019 Interest 137.95 1.46 135,41
04/30/2019 Charge 04/10/2019 95100 2700 139.41 153,10 292.51
05/15/2019 Misc - TAG 292.51 10.00 302.51
05/20/2019 Payment CHECK 302.51 -130.00 172.51
05/21/2019 Penalty 172.51 15.31 187.82
05/21/2019 Interest 187.82 2.30 190.12
05/30/2019 Charge 05/13/2019 93000 2900 190.12 162.38 352.50
0432019 Misc - TAG 352.50 10.00 362.50
L 2019 Payment CASH 362.50 -100.00 262.50
06/24/2019 Penalty 262.50 16.24 278.74
06/24/2019 Interest 278.74 3.37 282.11
06/27/2019 Charge 06/12/2019 101000 3000 282,11 167.02 449,13
07/1572019 Misc - TAG 449.13 10.00 459.13
07/16/2019 Payment CASH 459,13 -100.00 359.13
07/16/2019 Payment CASH 359.13 -100.00 259,13
07/22/2019 Penalty 259.13 16.70 275.83
07/22/2019 Interest 275.83 3.29 279.12
07/31/2019 Charge 07/11/2019 104500 3500 279.12 190.22 469.34
08/15/2019 Misc - TAG 469,34 10.00 479.34
08/19/2019 Payment CASH 479.34 -200.00 279.34
08/21/2019 Penalty 279.34 19.02 298.36
08/21/2019 Interest 298.36 3.59 301,95
08/29/2019 Charge 08/12/2019 108500 4000 301.95 21342 515.37
09/16/2019 Misc - TAG 515,37 10.00 525.37
09/17/2019 Payment CASH 525.37 -200.00 325,37
09/23/2019 Penalty 325.37 21.34 346.71
09/23/2019 Interest 346,71 4,24 35095
09/30/2019 Charge 09/12/2019 112200 3700 350.95 199.5¢ 550.45
10/14/2019 Misc - TAG 550.45 10.00 560.45
10/14/2019 Payment CASH 560.45 -60.00 500.45
10/16/2019 Payment CASH 500.45 «221.00 279.45
1~ 172019 Penalty 279.45 19.95 299.40
L iho19 Intercst 299.40 3.51 302.91
10/31/2019 Charge 10/14/2019 115500 3300 302.91 180.94 483.85
11/12/2019 Payment CASH 483.85 -100.00 383.85U
11/12/2019 10:27:48 AM F = First Bill L. = Final Bill U = Unclosed Transaction Page 4




Cabazon County Water District

Usage History
Previous 36 Months
Service: WATER

Customer Information Location Information
Account No: 3-14744F Location No: 3-526191021
SALVADOR FLORES AARINO

P.C. BOX CABAZON, CA 92230-

CABAZON, CA 92230-

000 o

A0

Usage

RTE Y

"

abgatuntuGe it

MG Sdal ebi A% i aln UL U e B ol eda B e lak i afun Uhuge Ml okeda R okl
Month

11/12/2019 10:28:21 AM Usage History Page 1




i
(T8
Z
=
[}
-
o
P
i
L o
T
i
i
Ta;
=
o
o,
[
Gy
s

fieiping comminitien’
fund tomorrow.




TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.  Execuiive SUMMALY ..covuieerimeeciiiiismioienn. N EersseseesEesaseasianaaNas IR e raRRNasseNRRR Rt tar R es s e bR ranteny
g 0 RO o 1 Ve [T 7= 2O T OO T U O T U O S 2
1.2 RePOrt FOPMAL .cooiiiiiiiiiiiinnniienmriiiiin s isssssssenssssssssstsessmnmmmnsssssssasssnsnsnsssesmmmisinns 3
2. Introduction and Fundamentals.........cccceeiienininaniann. reressesreneessssnasranarsessessassrnnrsnnasssssnnrans &
2.1 SCOPE OF STUDY oottt s see e e esse e s s etne s s e s e ae s s b aeeseentrneaes s e st bessranenes 4
2.2 Methods of ANalysis . e s 4
3. Water DIStrict ..o s s s aa s 9
3.1 Cost Of SerVICE ANGIYSIS oie it et e et r s st esat b s e s et e b e e teertr st aa b ebees 9
3.2 Fee EStablishment ... e e 9
3.3 Cost Recovery EValUation ... iieceecsicencsine e ssnesssinessssesssnecasssnessnens 10
T T 034 o] 11 T3 To o U 12
Appendices

Fully Burdened Hourly Rate Caiculation
Cost of Services (Fee Analysis)

Comparative Fee Survey

) NBS CABAZON WATER DISTRICT
) DRAFT User Fee Analysis

Appendix A
Appendix B
Appendix C




1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

NBS performed a User Fee Study {Study) for the Cabazon Water District {District]. The purpose of this
report is to describe the Study’s findings and recommendations, which intend to defensibly update and
establish user and regulatory fees for service for the Cabazon Water District.

Special districts in California can impose user fees and regulatory fees for services and activities they
provide through provisions of the State Constitution. Under Article XIIIC, Section 1, a fee may not exceed
the estimated reasonable cost of providing the service or performing the activity. For a fee to qualify as
such, it must relate to a service or activity under the control of the individual/entity on which the fee is
imposed. For example, a request to install a meter, set up a new water account, perform a plan review, or
test a meter for accuracy would require the District to perform specific activities related to each individual
request. In this manner, the service or the underlying action causing the District to perform the
requested service is either discretionary and/or is subject to regulation. As a discretionary service or
regulatory activity, the user fees and regulatory fees considered in this Study fall outside requirements for
imposition of taxes, special taxes, or fees imposed as incidences of property ownership.

The District’s chief purposes in conducting this Study were to ensure that its existing fees do not exceed
the costs of providing services, and to provide an opportunity for the District’s Board of Directors to align
fee amounts with local cost recovery policies.

1.1 Findings

This Study compares the current fee charged for each service charged by the District to the total estimated cost
of providing each service. NBS concludes that, on average, the District’s current fees under-recover the costs of
services provided. As shown in the following table, the Study identified approximately $21,000 currently collected
per year from fees for service, versus $37,000 of eligible costs for recovery from fees for service.

TABLE 1. REPORT SUMIMARY

$ 20,9801 % 37132 1§ (16,152} 57% $ 33,998 92%

The District is currently recovering approximately 57% of the total costs associated with providing fee
related services. Should the Board adopt fee levels at 100% of the calculated full cost recovery fee
amounts determined by this Study, an additional $16,000 in costs could be recovered.

However, as discussed in Section 1 of this report, there may be reasons why policy makers chose to adopt
fees at less than the calculated full cost recovery amount. As such, District staff provided initial
recommended fee amounts for the Beoard’s consideration. At District staff’s initial recommended fee
amounts, an additional 513,000 in costs could be recovered, for a cost recovery rate of 92%.

N BS CABAZON WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT User Fee Analysis 2




1.2 Report Format

This report documents analytical methods and data sources used throughout the Study, presents findings
regarding current levels of cost recovery achieved from user and regulatory fees, and discusses
recommended fee amounts.

« Section 2 of the report outlines the foundation of the Study and general approach

»  Section 3 discusses the results of the cost of service analysis

s  Section 4 provides the grand scope conclusions of the analysis

= Appendices to this report include additional details supporting the fully burdened hourly rate

calculation, the cost of providing each fee for service, and a comparison of similar fees
charged hy neighboring or comparable agencies.

N BS CABAZCON WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT User Fee Analysis 3




2. INTRODUCTION AND FUNDAMENTALS

2.1 Scope of Study

The following is a summarized list of fees studied for the District:

« Meter Account Set-up Fee

« Meter Accuracy Testing

¢ Backflow Testing and Protection Device Installation
= Plan Check, Inspection, and Processing Fees

s Reconnection Charge

« Door Hangar Fees

e Lien Fee

« Lab Water Test Fee

The fees examined in this Study specifically excluded development impact fees, utility rates, and any
special tax assessments, all of which fall under distinct analytical and procedural requirements different
from the body of user/regulatory fees analyzed in this effort. Additionally, this Study excluded facility and
equipment rental rates, as well as most of fines and penalties imposed by the District for violations to its
requirements or codes.

2.2 Methods of Analysis

There are three phases of analysis completed for the District fees studied:

1. Cost of service analysis
2. Fee establishment
3. Cost recovery evaluation

2.2.1  COST OF SERVICE ANALYSIS

This cost of service analysis is a quantitative effort that compiles the full cost of providing governmental
services and activities. There are two primary types of costs considered: direct and indirect costs. Direct
costs are those that specifically relate to an activity or service, including the real-time provision of the
service. Indirect costs are those that support provision of services in general, but cannot be directly or
easily assigned to a singular activity or service.

Components of the full cost of service include direct labor costs, indirect labor costs, specific direct non-
fabor costs where applicable, allocated non-labor costs, and allocated overhead. Definitions of these cost
components are as follows:

' - CABAZON WATER DISTRICT
b N S DRAFT User Fee Analysis 4




« Labor costs — Salary, wages and benefits expenses for District personnel specifically involved
in the provision of services and activities to the public,

« Indirect labor costs — Perscnnel expenses supporting the provision of services and activities.
This can include line supervision and district management, administrative support, and staff
involved in technical activities related to the direct services provided to the public.

»  Specific direct non-labor costs — When applicable, discrete expenses incurred due to a
specific service or activity performed, such as contractor costs, third-party charges, and very
specific materials used in the service or activity.

«  Allocated indirect non-labor costs — Expenses other than labor for provision of services. In
most cases, these costs are allocated across all services provided, rather than directly
assigned to fee categories.

=  Allocated indirect organization-wide overhead — These are expenses, both labor and non-
labor, related to agency-wide support services. Support services include general
administrative services such as finance, human resources, information technology, etc. An
agency’s support services assist the direct providers of public services, The amount of costs
attributable to the District exist within the budgeted expenditures and have been included in
this Study.

All cost components in this Study use annual {or annualized) figures, representing a twelve-month cycle of
expenses incurred by the District in the provision of all services and activities agency-wide.

Nearly all of the fees under review in this Study require specific actions on the part of District staff to
provide the service or conduct the activity. Because labor is the primary underlying factor in these
actlvities, the Study expresses the full cost of service as a fully burdened cost per labor hour. NBS
calculates a composite, fully burdened, hourly rate for the District as applicable to the specific
organization and its needs. The rate serves as the basis for further quantifying the average full cost of
providing individual services and activities.

Deriving the fully burdened hourly rate requires two figures: the full costs of service and the number of
hours available to perform those services. The full costs of service are guantified through the earlier steps
described in this analysis. NBS derives the hours available from a complete listing of all District
employees and, when applicable, hours of service available from contracted professionals.

The District has supplied NBS with the total number of paid labor hours for each function/service. These
available hours represent the amount of productive time available for providing hoth fee-recoverable and
non-fee recoverable services and activities. The productive labor hours divided into the annual full costs
of service equals the composite fully burdened hourly rate. Some agencies also use the resulting rates for
other purposes than setting fees, such as when the need arises to calculate the full cost of general
services or structure a cost recovery agreement with another agency or third party.

The fully burdened hourly rate applied at the individual fee level estimates an average full cost of
providing each service or activity. This step required the development of staff time estimates for the
services and activities listed in the District’s fee schedule. For all fee programs studied, time tracking
records {if available) were useful in identifying time spent providing general categories of service (e.g.
processing, plan review, inspection, etc.). However, the District does not systematically track activity

N B$ CABAZON WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT User Fee Analysis 5




service time for all individual fee-level services provided. Consequently, interviews and questionnaires
were used to develop the necessary data sets describing estimated labor time. In many cases, the District
estimated the average amount of time {in minutes and hours} it would take to complete a typical
occurrence of each service or activity considered,

It should be noted that the development of these time estimates was not a one-step process: estimates

received were carefully reviewed by both NBS and District management to assess the reasonableness of
such estimates. Based on this review, the District reconsidered its time estimates until both parties were
comfortable that the fee models reasonably reflected the average service level provided by the District.

Then, time estimates were applied to the appropriate fully burdened labor rate to yield an average total
cost of the service or activity.

2.2.2 FEE ESTABLISHMENT

Establishing fee names and categories includes a range of considerations. The Study’s process provided
the District the opportunity to propese additions and deletions to their fee schedules, as well as rename,
reorganize, and clarify fee names and categories. Fee categories and fee names were simplified or re-
structured to increase the likelihood of full cost recovery, or to enhance the fairness of how the fee
applies to various types of fee payers.

Many such revisions better conform fees to current practices, as well as improve the calculation of fees
owed by an individual, the application of fees, and the collection of revenues. Beyond this, some
additions to the fee schedule were simply identification of existing services or activities performed by
District staff for which no fee is currently charged.

The District’s fee schedule should also list the full burdened hourly rate(s) developed by the Study.
Documenting these rates in the fee schedule provides an opportunity for the Board to approve rates for
cost recovery under a “time and materials” approach, where applicable. It also provides clear publication
of those rates, so fee payers of any uniquely determined fee can reference the amounts. The fee
schedule should provide language that supports special forms of cost recovery for activities and services
not contemplated by the adopted master fee schedule. These rare instances use the published rates to
estimate a flat fee, or bill an an hourly basis, at the discretion of the District.

2.2.3 COST RECOVERY EVALUATION

The NBS fee model compares the existing fee for each service or activity to the average total cost of
service guantified through this analysis. A cost recovery rate of 0% identifies no current recovery of costs
from fee revenues (or insufficient information available for evaluation). A rate of 100% means that the
fee currently recovers the full cost of service. A rate between 0% and 100% indicates partial recovery of
the full cost of service through fees. A rate greater than 100% means that the fee exceeded the full cost
of service.

User fees and regulatory fees examined in this Study should not exceed the full cost of service. In other
words, the cost recovery rate achieved by a fee should not be greater than 100%. In most cases, charging
a fee above this threshold could require the consensus of the voters.

NBS also assists with modeling the “recommended” or “targeted” level of cost recovery for each fee,
always established at 100%, or less, than the calculated full cost of service. Targets and
recommendations always reflect agency-specific judgments linked to a variety of factors, such as existing

N S CABAZON WATER DISTRICT
ook DRAFT User Fee Analysis 6




policies, agency-wide or district revenue objectives, economic goals, community values, market
conditions, level of demand, and others,

A general means of selecting an appropriate cost recovery target is to consider the public and private
benefits of the service or activity in question.

« Toawhat degree does the public at large benefit from the service?

» Towhat degree does the individual or entity requesting, requiring, or causing the service
benefit?

When a service or activity completely benefits the public at large, there is generally little to no
recommended fee amount {i.e., 0% cost recovery), reflecting that a truly public-benefit service is best
funded by the general resources of the District, such as General Fund revenues (e.g., taxes). Conversely,
when a service or activity completely benefits an individual or entity, there is generally closer to or equal
to 100% of cost recovery from fees, collected from the individual or entity. An example of a completely
private benefit service may be a request for exemption from a District regulation or process.

In some cases, a strict public-versus-private benefit judgment may not be sufficient to finalize a cost
recovery target. Any of the following other factors and considerations may influence or supplement the
public/private benefit perception of a service or activity:

« If optimizing revenue potential is an overriding goal, is it feasible to recover the full cost of
service?

+  Willincreasing fees result in non-compliance or public safety problems?

= Are there desired behaviors or modifications to behaviors of the service population helped or
hindered through the degree of pricing for the activities?

= Does current demand for services support a fee increase without adverse impact to the
citizenry served or current revenue levels? (In other words, would fee increases have the
unintended consequence of driving away the population served?)

= s there a good policy basis for differentiating between type of users (e.g., residents and non-
residents, residential and commercial, non-profit entities and business entities)?

s Are there broader District objectives that inform a less than full cost recovery target from
fees, such as economic development goals and local social values?

Because this element of the Study is subjective, NBS provides each fee calculation at 100% fuli cost
recovery as well as the framework for the District to adjust recommended fee amounts in accordance
with the District’s goals as pertains to code compliance, cost recovery, economic development, and social
values.

N BS CABAZON WATER DISTRICT
3 DRAFT User Fee Analysis 7




2.2.4 DATA SOURCES

The following data sources were used to support the cost of service analysis and fee establishment phases
of this Study:

« The Cabazon Water District’s Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2018-2019

¢ A complete listing of all District personnel, salary/wage rates, regular hours, paid benefits,
and paid leave amounts.

¢ Various correspondences with the District staff supporting the adopted budgets and current
fees, including budget notes and expenditure detail not shown in the published document,

» The District’s prevailing fee schedule.

» Annual workload data from the prior fiscal year provided by the District.

The District’s adopted budget is the most significant source of information affecting cost of service
results. NBS did not audit or validate the District’s financial management and budget practices, nor was
cost information adjusted to reflect different levels of service or any specific, targeted performance
benchmarks. This Study has accepted the District’s budget as a legislatively adopted directive describing
the most appropriate and reasonable level of District spending. Consultants accept the Board's
deliberative process and ultimate acceptance of the budget plan and further assert that through that
legistative process, the District has yielded a reasonable expenditure plan, valid for use in setting cost-
based fees.

Original data sets also support the work of this Study: primarily, estimated or tracked time at various
levels of detail. To develop these data sets, consultants prepared questionnaires and conducted
Interviews with the District. In the fee establishment phase of the analysis, the District supplied estimates
of average time spent providing a service or activity correspanding with an existing or new fee. NBS and
District management reviewed and questioned responses to ensure the best possible set of estimates.

NBS CABAZON WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT User Fee Analysis 8




3. WATER DISTRICT

The Cabazon Water District provides safe, reliable drinking water, and reciamation services to its
customers in a prudent and sustainable manner. Aside from its primary focus on operation and
maintenance of the water system and infrastructure, the District charges a number of fees for services
pertaining to account management, installation and removal of meters, meter testing, development
review, and other miscellaneous service requests.

3.1 Cost of Service Analysis

To evaluate the cost of providing individual fee related services, NBS first developed a composite fully-
burdened hourly rate for the Water District, as shown in the table below:

TABLE 2, FULLY BURDENED HOURLY RATE CALCULATION

Labor 394,274
Recurring Non-Labor 117,531
Districtwide Overhead Costs 109,288
District Admin 306,388

Reference: Direct Hours Only

The total annual cost of the Water District per year is approximately $927,000. All subsequent cost of
service calculations at the individual fee level assume a fully burdened hourly rate of $122 for Water
District support.

Section 2.2.1, Cost of Service Analysis, provides descriptions of each “Cost Element” noted in the table
above, as well as further explanation of the approach and methodology used in the fully burdened hourly
rate calculation. Approach to development of this rate involved an analysis of both direct and indirect
costs of providing services. Careful attention was paid to the types of costs included in development of
the fully burdened hourly rate. Costs clearly designated for system maintenance or improvements were
excluded, while costs that generally support stafi’s role in provision of service delivery and daily
operations were included. The hourly rate of $122 per hour was subsequently applied toward
establishment of the full cost of providing the user and regulatory fee services studied.

Appendix A provides the detailed analysis supporting this fully burdened hourly rate calculation.

3.2 Fee Establishment

The following is a summary of overall changes made 1o the District’s fee schedule:
¢ Deletion of the Special Equipment fee as this is no longer used.

N BS CABAZON WATER DISTRICT
B DRAFT User Fee Analysis 9




« Reorganization of fee categories or clarification of fee names to create a more user-friendly
fee structure, such as:
o Meter Accuracy Testing — Split fees by meter size and renamed various fee categories

o District Administration Processing — Restructured this fee from being charged as 15%
on top of contractor costs to being charged as a flat / fixed admin fee.

o Backflow Testing Charge — Renamed various fee categories

o Backflow Protection Device installation — Relocated the position of this fee closer o
Backflow Testing Charge in the fee list

o Meter - Request for Removal, Replacement, Relocation, or Change in Meter Size —
Consolidated multiple fees into a single category

o Door Hangar Fee - Split Fee between vellow and red tags
« Addition of a new fee category, Lab Water Test, notated as “New” in Appendix B,

Section 2.2.3, Fee Establishment, provides additional discussion on the Study's approach to adding,
deleting, and revising fee categories.

3.3 Cost Recovery Evaluation

Appendix B presents the results of the detailed cost recovery analysis for the Water District fees. In the
Appendix, the “Cost of Service per Activity” column establishes the maximum adoptable fee amount for
the corresponding service identified in the “Fee Name” list. The Cost of Service Per Activity for each fee
item is compared to the District’s current fee for each service, and the “Existing Cost Recovery %” shows
whether each fee is under, over, or approximately equal to the cost of providing the service.

The District fees currently recover approximately 57% of the total annual cost of providing services. As
shown in the following table, the District collects approximately $21,000 per year in revenues at current
fee amounts. At full cost recovery, the same demand for these services would recover approximately
$37,000. Should the Board of Directors adopt all fees at 100% of the Cost of Service per Activity amounts
shown, an additional $16,000 could be recovered.

TABLE 3. COST RECOVERY OUTCOMES

Water Dis{rict 3 20,880 | § 37,132 | 8 (16,152) 57% $ 33,996 92%

NBS provided the full cost of service information and the framework for considering fees, while those
closest to the fee-paying population, District staff, considered appropriate cost recovery levels at or
betow that full cost, The “Recommended Fee Level / Depasit” column in Appendix B displays staff's initial
recommended fee amounts. With staff's recommended adjustments, Water District fees are projected to
recover 92% of the costs of providing services,

N BS CABAZON WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT User Fee Analysis 10




For more discussion on NBS’ overall approach to the Cost Recovery Evaluation, consult section 2.2.3 of
the Report.

* CABAZON WATER BISTRICT
3 N BS DRAFT User Fee Analysis 11




4. CONCLUSION

Based on the Cost of Service Analysis, Fee Establishment, and Cost Recovery Evaluation outcomes
presented in this Study, the proposed Schedule of Fees has been formatted for implementation and
included in the District’s accompanying Staff Report.

As discussed throughout this report, the proposed fee schedule intends to improve the District’s recovery
of costs incurred to provide individual services, as well as to adjust fees downward where fees charged
exceed the average costs incurred. Predicting the amount to which any adopted fee increases will affect
District revenues is difficult to quantify. For the near-term, the District should not count on increased
revenues to meet any specific expenditure plan. Experience with the revised fee amounts should be
gained first before revenue projections are revised. However, unless there is some significant, long-term
change in activity levels at the District, proposed fee amendments should enhance the District’s cost
recovery performance, over time, providing it the ability to stretch other resources further for the benefit
of the public at large.

The District’s Fee Schedule should become a living document but handled with care:

e A fundamental purpose of the fee schedule is to provide clarity and transparency to the public and
to staff regarding fees imposed by the District. Once adopted by the Board, the fee schedule is the
final word on the amount and manner in which fees should be charged. Old fee schedules should
be superseded by the new master document. If the master document is found to be missing fees,
those fees need eventually to be added to the master schedule and should not continue to exist
outside the consolidated, master framework.

¢ The District should consider adjusting these user fees and regulatory fees on an annual basis to keep
pace at least with cost infiation. For all fees and charges, the District could use either a Consumer
Price Index adjustment or a percentage of Labor Cost increase, and that practice would be well
applied to the new fee schedule. Conducting a comprehensive user fee Study is not an annual
requirement; it becomes worthwhile only over time as significant shifts in organization, local
practices, legisiative values, or legal requirements change,

As afinal note in this Study, it is worth acknowledging the path that fees in general have taken in California.
The public demands ever more precise and equitable accounting of the basis for governmental fees and a
greater say in when and how they are charged. It is inevitable in the not too distant future, that user fees
and regulatory fees will demand an even greater level of analysis and supporting data to meet the public's
evolving expectations. Technology systems will play an increased and significant role in an agency’s ability
to accomplish this. Continuous improvement and refinement of time tracking abilities will greatly enhance
the District’s ability to set fees for service and identify unfunded activities in years to come.

Disclaimer: in preparing this repert and the opinions and recommendations included herein, NBS hos relied on a number of principal assumptions
and considerations with regard to financial matters, conditions and events that moy cccur in the future. This informatlon and assumptions, inchiding
the District’s budgets, time estimate data, and workload information from District stuff, were provided by sources we belleve to be reliable; however,
NBS has not independently verified such information and assumptions. While we believe NBS' use of such infarmation and assumptions Is reasonable
for the purpose of this report, same assumptions will invariably not materialize os stated herein and may vary significantly due to unanticipated
events and circumstances. Therefore, the actuol results can be expected to vary from those projected to the extent that actual future conditions
differ from those assumed by us or provided to us by others.

CABAZON WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT User Fee Analysls 12




S 40 T 95ed ‘YHA4 Jo1eM

6T0Z/8T/L 9TS£'9/9°008:9545-{|0L WO AOSSqU MMM (G
SUOIIN]0S ILUUIDACSG) |2I0T - SHN
6Z9'L 1638°T $TS0T - 9zs'oT SINOW JOQET , BARINPCId,, {BUCHIUN
VLTP6E Lev'yeT $ | TLL'ess $ | zeese 000°0LS [e303gns
£ER'EST 988'SL S | 61L°672 S | 6T6'%E 002'v07 [g103gns
BTH T - wawasn{py ufauag jj UoLIUYIB L JIIOM
008%0Z spyeuRg
VY OFE TI9BIL £50'55E S jlert'e) Q07 S9E |e101gns
£9R'EL awsnipy Anjos | voaruyaa ] 19104,
(e0007) JuBWISNIBY 334 54013210
[sleragorcly 4] saLeEs
HEC'EE VORGSO WORIDI0Y 1507 10007

/} uoung yoez.ox LONEAO|[Y 1507

w xipuaddy

[t] SILLSILVLS ONV S3UMNLIANILX3 808V

uonenoed ey AUnoH pauaping And
6102 Jea [easty Apnag 234 435
12141810 1932, UOZRG RS




S 30 7 9384 ‘YHad 191EMm

18
69%
030°E
STY
£VIVT
oL
S50
951G
gE1'T
80
96¥'9
90r'T

96T
79E's
Siv
8¥80T

&Y
Tz
078’1
870°C
£5TTT
&5
ST0Z
ST
295
786'T
0T
¥68

YSET
SEL'E
SET

FaTAl

v xipuaddy

610Z/8T/L

00E'T
004
009'7
007’9
008'9€
oo
ooT's
0oLt
0021
0009
002'6
00TT

oory
005G
otL
Q08'sT

{ooe)

{oot'ort)
{ooe't)

(009w}

{ooL)

{00s's) $

00E'T
QoL
009'v
00z'e
008°9¢
00g
0oT'9
004t
0OL'T
000°9
00L'6
00TT

00Kt
005’6
0L
D06'ST

coo‘otT
803
OD9'Es
oOvr'81
00Z'9€
00009
00S'TT
00g
00t'eetT
00E'T
008’y
0oL
0054

9TSL 9/9°008:9344-1|01 WO AOSSYU MMM 1GIM,
SUORN|O0S IUBWUIBAOD 8307 - SAN

JBULO - Sesuadxg aso
FUDIAISS WSISAS ULIR)Y 3414
Bupalag BUIUOpUOD Ay
2ge1015 3UO
s3310J35 Jeandwe)
51UaY 79 595837
suciEnlgng 1§ Suiulig
3deisog
suoidudsqng |y sang
saddng pue asdon
lugwdinby g s91ddng
wasAs Fupig 4918
sasusthaa 90
Furueard auyo B doydig yseay
suoydasL
seg
Axoraoag3
PO - FIHBHAN
TRYIO - QLS9 ‘sampoey
SI0IRULIMYD
saomuEs Bueaudug
Anaseg
BIUBUBIUIRIN [[3M
sjeulely INBY dul]
1010B1U0] WTRY SUn
YavIs
S - SN
J0}3BIIUOTD BNAIDS J0ILIBLBG
SIBIBIN
e 13 Juidedspuen aug
s394 ge
731 “sam “san|oey

i

STHNLIANIEXT HOIVI-NON DNIYUNo3Y

UOER[NI|EY) 31eYy AUNOH pataping A[ng
610 4234 {E35I4 ApNnIg 394 Jasn
1181 191/ UoZEgR)



S §o £ 956 YHL JaIeMm

6107/8Z/¢ 9TS/'9/9°008:32.44-]|0L LUCI'AOSSOU MMM SQBAN
SUGIN| 0% JUSWUIBA0S (8307 - SAN

- - - {pog's97) 0039z ssuadxz uopenaidag

- - - {po9't} 009t SNOBURYIISHA

- - - {coz't} 00Tt ssusdxy 199G peg

" - - (o08's) oog's asusdxy 1524914t OdHA

- - - {oog'on) 00EoT I5uUsCx3 15U ¥MA

- - - {009'T) 008t 284 Buissenolg LBo 5 JuRiD
S35NIdXI BNILVHICO-NON

£0% L6T 00§ - 008 18UIBIU] g BUOL SAC JSIRM

206 2658y CO5'ET - C0GET WRY - $¥3n4] 33185

90F'T (5] 0oL - 00E'z |E1UBY JuBwdinb]

0L 0t 0001 - 600"t sasuadx3 103081 )

SeE SgT cos - Gos fajes

¥OO'T 96Y 0Os"T - 00s'T swiloyun sehojdws

TIS'8 8ZE'Y 008 TT - ongTT 1804 BPOIYSA

OEE'vT 06% COT'TZ - 00i'tE SI00L etus pue ssyddng doyg
uawdinks g $]001 ILASS
- - - {0oz'g) ooy AOHAGE/5934 10
LSE'S £¥9'T 000’8 - 0oo's ELCTIRE I

- - - {oos) 00s olpey B340

- - - oot C00'TT FDUBINSUY AYJIQEIT IBIBURD)

- - - {0oc't) 0oLt uoddns ausgam

- - - {oot'vi OOty 821AIBS [JCIARY

- B - toos) 004 sadiey 30IAIBS Hueg

- - - {ocg'ss) 009'es 53910795 jeS9T

B - - looo'oe) 000'0E fununooay

- - - {oot'zz} Qot'ze HpnY [RiouRUS

- - - {ooo'ot) 000'CT 10027 Aesodusa]
4] $3MAIRS Hoddng

7 uonauny yae3 03 uoREIO|Y 1507

v xipuaddy vonenaE) 318y AUNoH pausping Ajpnd
6T0T JE3A |BISIE Apnls Bag sasn
LIS ADIEN UOTRGR)




S Jo v a8eqd ‘YHad Ja3em

6102/82/L 9T5/79/9" 00819244101 WOT ADSSCU MMM SGIAN
SUOHN|OS JUSWILIBAOS |2307 - SEN

B YRS h i
88T 60T TI6'ES 00Z'e91 S150D) PEIYIIAQ IPIMIDLISIO
TESLIT 6L6°LS ors'sst Joqei-uop Surunasy

vLZTvEE LE¥'PET $ | TeL'sss

Ay

'/ UoIIIUN YT 03 UOREOOIY 3507,

S1S02 QVIHYIAO 3 'OSYT-NON HOSYT 40 AMVININNS

&

S68'56 5901A09§ Moddng
E6E'ET Saliejes S10109.1]

S1SOD AYIHYIAO AAMLDIMASIT

¥ xipuaddy UOREBINIIE) 918y ANOK pauapang Ajnd
6T0T 1234 |easiy Aprag aag 1asn
IS 451BAN UDZEGED




540 § afed “YHad Jaem 6T0T/8T/L 916/ G£9°C0R:994d-[|OL WO ADSSGU MMM QI
SUOIN[OS USWUIBACD BI0T - SEN

PRIYIIAO SRIM-1211151G S2 PALISSE|IaI sasuadxy [7]

"HEIS PUISIT 1IN UcZEQE) AQ papod  xspeiadpng peacsddy 51-8T A4 198png uozeqe), wWod PadNes uonewloju Jadpng [1]
STICN

6T9L AJUQ SINOL JI94( 1aURIBfIY

R

88E'90E UIPY 1LASIg
§37'60T 51507 PRAYIBAD BPIMIIIASI
TESLTT loget-uop Sulunasy
VIT'V6E

S AR
S fuonaung
Cpezoy
uQIEIO| Y 1507

S$1507 SALLIAILIY NOIWINGD 30 NOLLYIOTV

v xipuaddy uoiie[nae) siey Aunoy pauaping Ajny
6TOT 4224 |BI514 APNIS 994 495N
1913517 LBIEAR UDZRGRD



4o T 88ed ‘SO0 Ja3eM 6T0Z/91/0T ST5/°9/9 008:9814-1j0), Wo A0Tsqu MM (g
SUGHN|OS WALILIBAOL |2207 - SEN

- S - S - s - efu 1507 |enlay EfU 1507 1RNISY efu Bfu Bfu 1503 [en1y 1507 1919 Shitd
oy
- - H - $1 - %001 ZZT 5 %99 08 ST ¢ |zeT s a0 T WU 28, T uey Jadie
- Aunopy
ngy
fA 4% |2z $ 199 ST %001 F14 $ HES ] ST g | ezt s 00T T s 2PN Lz 0 8/5
-~ Apnoy
3715 J9)5 |y Ul dHUEYD JO ‘UCIIED0RYy
“ualAIR|daY ‘|BACLISY 104 153NDRY - 1PN 4
sinoy
- $ - §p - 3| - %00T 281 3 %T3T 057 5| LET § | LET S ot £ W (Ui sanoy g} SIROH SSBUISHY [BULION Jayy
- AlnoH )
Moy
- 3 - 3 - o %007 Tl S %35 0L s|@wr g el |3 00T Twnwny SINOH SS3UISNYG [RUWLION
- Apnoy
293 93ewe( WalsAs Jajey uczege)| §
- $ - $ - ¢l - %00t 1507 JENIDY %00T 1503 |BMSY Bfu ey e/u e el {fueg pig) lelsuy
A s ) P ¢ Ajanoy . ney
% F1s07 ey %ES 99 s{zer §1z7T S T T :.H__M_..ME SAMTS P14 IUIRQ
ERIETR)
- s - s - S = %001 3 s % SOJoRIIu0]) oE ST 3 S0 o1 3u1s58204¢ AARBISILILPY PIISIG
10 4O UD 46T
UDNEEISUE 3348 LoN2a10.g mopded| +
A - . - Aoy B Apnoy
s s s %00T TLT 5 % /3507 ey T §leer -] 00't P IDUISIG AQ PIIOLS 159] PO
pepnpul papagLy Aeg payL
- - - R 9 e
s $ s % /sBieyn oy * / 8ieyz ou fu e 5 B Aq PawIOpEd SINSAY 1531 JO MIMSY PLISIE
- 3 - S - S - %00T 0g $ 96597 0% S |0E szt S ST'0 ey 334 Fugoyuciy fenuy - BUISIG
odieys Bunss) moyaeq| €
- 5 - Y - 5 - 00T 1507 |EnIDY %00T 3500 [eny efu 2y efu 631 164 [Azseg pUg) Sunsay
Aunay noy
- 5| - s - A % I %ES 59 st i e H 00T 1 ﬁﬂﬁs SEIUDS PlaL PLISI]
adIeyD
- $ - $ - H - %00T 0g S % MEDRAUCD | OE s | zax s s7'0 124 BuiS5A30.1d PARRISILILIPY 118G
4o dog uo %ST
4] LT UeL) Jadiey - gas Jupisa ADRInD2y 1339
- S| - S| - $1 - %00T 1507 [2n1dy %00T 3507 ey efu gfu e/u 2] 101 {Aueg pig) Bunss),
- $ - S - $ " %6051 Z5T 5 %Y s9 S |estT s lzen B ST lel3 SINAIBS PIBL MISIG
- s - $ - 5 - 00T oL 5 WEE 18 S | Ot $ | Zzr S 4] e B01S5300.4d SARRASIUIPY PLIIEIA
[t2] A3l{es 10,7 ~ 934 Juisat Aseunddy 1Bt ¢
Oys'T 3 | ops't $|0ZsT R %001 0T S %66 0z S0z s |zzt S FAq] bk 334 dn-134 1Un0a%y passla] I

: SISA|EUY 2NUIATY POIEWNST [eNuUUY-- i SEAMBUY AJBNGIBY 1897 T | e aishleuy 1503 anaaas Aoy

g xipuaddy . SRIAEY PUE SS3AI35 PAIR[EY 333 40} SIBLUNAST IINIBS JO 50T
6TOT 182) (22514 Apmas 333 4851
WIRSIG JFIBAN UDZRGRD




407 28ed SO0 Jarem 6TOZ/9T/0T 9I5/°9/9°008:9344-110] WO A0BSqU MMM U3
SUQHN|CS JUBLULIBACD [B207T - SEAN

0T's oz0 Adon 108 153nbay 5y SpJoIsy
2Ny fIDWOISTT JBd UL 4310 Auy
org ar'o IRRUY 42d $81do3 Q0L wWiHad PISK
5T 520 1aays sog WNWIXEIA Ja3Ys 0T
I saBiey) Ado) o1ayd JO Xed] 9T
50T S | 60T 5 ors S{8T %00 18 s EY QE $119 $iTeT $ 050 {el e S 3§30 padnay) ST
WSS JNEM [BIIUI04 20 Tunsixa
- - - - %001 T -
$ H § %00 7z 3 %ES 59 5Tt $iTer S ocT e sus219q 01 wopsadsul [321eg, /2y 0 zioday
- s - 3 - s - %00T 344 S %91 SE S | e $ et H £8'T 153nbay JAWo3sn) Ag 1994 15919y
- 3 z H - S - %6001 r < b7 Dg S | ey 5 {Z7T S ££°0 237 JuIssaneld SARRNSILEWPY
- 51 - 51 - s| - % 1507 [en1ay % 1503 [EN1Sy 2fu Fea [ B 107 (oY 2518 MOT4 2113
(mold adig) S37ey) JaRal 3uas M| 1T
- 3 - $ - St - %00T 4! S %ES 59 s |z A $ 00T Aunoh 394 uoijej(ejsu| aajep Jaweosn)| €1
$ Apuop
5 Aspvow
s Asguon
s Asauom
5 Ajsaueiy
11 SIS B4 3Bl TT
208'8 $ | zos's $ | 0781 S 181 %001 51 B %It at S |6t $ |zt $ or'o dersad SeLpay
0E6'ST S | oge'sT S | 09g'6 $ 1986 %4001 LT 5 %65 1 S LT El K41 B ¥T°0 ey sad BeL mofja)
234 123081 J00g] 1T
{sunL
- s - s - 3] - %YE 0st 3 %LS 0st $ | sev $ | LET s ire 181 Auy) sheprioH / {sun) Auy) spuasdepn /(Nv0ES
F WATO0T) SIYSIN 3o 3187 Buling uoiieanseay
WdD00T - INdOE Y (SSAISY SIUBIN
- - . - < .
¥ ¥ s e 0sT s wEY 561 § | sEv | § e e Jaaan f SinoH ssausng-udy Juling uoReaseay
0508 $lest'e $ | os0's s ot %29 oS S %29 0s s {18 $ {2zt 5 £9'0 613 SINOH S5aulsng |eLlsN Julng UoRRARSESY
aiieys vondsuuodsy| ot
soue|Eg ‘| soueien pedun
pedun uo yiuow UG U0 il ey FEiey) 303 IUNODY Wenbuleg| 6
Jad %45°T + %ST {490 %5°T + %ST |
- Si - S{ - sl - e/u 000's § 000'S g efu e/u B Wsudag 503 JOPERUTT
- B - S - B - %001 7T % %581 STE s |zex s |zex < 01 ey 984 BU|SS8I0Id IAREIS[LIWPY
ABREQ IV
- 5 - S - S - Bju Q0g's 5 efu Con's s efu efu 2/u Alsedag S350 JOWERIUD)
- s - Si - s - %001 444 S el | szt s |z sl S 00T e 531 Juis580014 SAGRISIILIPY
Apwes sEuig
5834 Tuissacid pue ‘suonsadsuf Hoad ueld| g

- $ISAJEUY SNUINDY PalEMIST [BNUUY. e SISAIEUY ABADIY 3500 R ¢ “ISA[RUY 1562 831MSS AUMDIY

A x|puaddy SIARMITY PUE SIDIAIDS Patelay I3 104 FJEWNIST IS 3O 1500
BTOR 423\ [eas)d Aprag 893 29350
1)ISIA J1BAL UOZEED




¥ 10 € a8eq SO0 Jalem 5T0Z/91/0T 9TSL 9L9008B2U1-[0L WOIAOSSU MMM 1GIM
SUOHNOS IUILILISAGE) {BI0T - SHN
- $ - 5 - %4001 1807 |eny 00T 1507 ey efu 2y efu [z e {AMueg pig} Bunsay
- S - $ - %00T st S HZET a0z S | ZstT $|zTt $ ST w3 334 $93IAUBS P[ald / SARBIISIUILPY 1BLESIg
82 UONRIGIRIBY MBI
ST H JsL'T S [ Moa._w«_c“ﬂdw “ 28ieyD IAIEINUENT J3IBAY,
s394 dn
9 1UnamE 58 <8 5 101 a=4 dn-135 N0y SWI-sUgD
fA:14 § 18¢ S m Aauen 32uBY) BOMIBS IBIBIA AILOWY
- sl - s| - 00T $ Q0T s sodag SR
URIPAH USRINNSUG) Jo) Tisedasd 3iqepuniay
sailey?) J319N IUBIPAH [ 1S13iA LOIINASUGD] 0T
55T S | 6501 s | 009 %001 j44 5 %ir a0t S| EFT 5|zt s ooe et 5394 Uai 6T
03¢ Q5T b1¥] SITIOH SSIUISAY [BULION JAYY
0L oL 1014 $INQH $SAUISNG [BWION
s} 5394 JUApIRLl ZT
0007 a0g'c 1004 331BYD) UONIDUUCT FIIALDS
00T'E a0z’ 18} 22127 WIISAS UoKRAGIISI]
000°52, jaoiny-T4 ¢l
7j5 191N T
006t 005'T 1214 SHIBY) UONIIUNCT TIALDG
O02'E 00’ kLT 281BUD WHISAS UOINGLASK]
0ST'8T 0sT'8T w0 B4 o15eg
275 118N Z/T-T
ore't are't [T 3312Y) UORIIUUCY) IINNLIG
0eT'e 90T's 381 S8IeyD WassAS UDHAGLASIT
0506 050'6 w3
ang 132N T
0BT’ 08T'T 1egg I9IBLD) LORIILUC] SNBSS
002'E a0e’e 1eH ey wBIsAS Lonaqnslg
055's ast's e 1Ry SR Hseg
ST IBIBW P/
T'T QLTT e 312U LORDALULDY) 32IAIDS
O07'E O0Z'E ECH adreyn WalsAs uonngusig
059°€ 059°c e aHJEy SAN(I0E] Jiseg
3215 188N, b/ X ,8/S
SIFIEYD) USIE]|ISU| UORIDUUGD)
[s] A3
A2NALSS PUY WEISAS LOINGLASI] TANRE] DISEg

 SISAIEUY JNUSADY POIRBINIST |enuuY:

sishjeuy AJanoIsy 1563

Aseuy 3500 93 Aoy

4 xipuaddy

135 PUE S93IALAG PAILIDY D3 JO) IIBLUNISF IDLAUIS JO IS0

BICZ 4E3A [B351d APNLS 334 435N

133SI J3IEM, UOZEGED



40 1 98Rd ‘SOD J31BM 6T0Z/91/01 9152949008901 -]|C ) WOFAQESGU MMM 1qIM

SUCIIRIOS JUBLULIBAOL) (B30T - SN

atenjend
30U PP SBI Y 324 UONEBHIN/ODST 9 324 $83j UonIBULOT

S331AIRS BUIISA] JOL ITPUIA SI0LSHT Aq podieyD
1unows jeniar ua Bupusdsp aluey 01 153{qns 1 Junowe 234 el

"STIIEYS AUG SR{O ASUOULAIRNI § Janysedfyses Juauciuad ve poseyd

2 ATUE JWGISRD £ UTRUEIN 10 TWEIS{SSY SAIIRASIURLDY YL 40 [BA0sdde U3 Yiim put
OV Y3 W0 LUnpUeIowus o fem Ag U0 ‘SIES A0 JOPJ0 AQUCUL Y9y 5 JRIYSeafy5ED
30 powad Aseuo|ieqosd JEDA (1) auo & uo pane(d 9 A2 SHISHYI JSN (ERHGRY apmasd
3P4l SRW0IND {GYD) IRwHIedDg TUN02DY JALUAISND §AISHE 4L 0 MO[IAIISE ST Iy

£}

“Benpuey
pue Buiddiys +0 “Jogey “Junssl 203 2dleya U 3q M Ay SuoeyRads waun  [g]
JDPU 04 SDOP JUTTU B4) §] “SUORHEDYITLS LIyl SE PRIST JRi0W Uaym palicys Aup
arealens 100 pip N [T
{sa10N]

- $1 .- ${ - $1 - 00T 1507 [ENIY %007 1503 [2N10Y efu efu 2/u r) 2ty {Auteg pag) Bunsay
. g1 - S - $1 - %00T 43 s % waL Z8T $ et S o5'E 1 530S PIRH PHIIG
- S e 5 s S - %001 % $ % FAAL 18 $ | zzT 3 0570 12y FUIS59301 AITRIISUIWPY LIS
fz] 25 158 Jayeph GEq [ mau

{samoy
- 1 S| - 8 %001 LET g %Ly 59 s | LT $ [T S a0t £ UL - SIN0Y ABPHOY L0 'PUIYISM SSALISNY
-Uou) uosiaRdng 2340/0wW3 1DLISIG PRJInbay
oy [anoy T U - sInoy ssausng
. $ ° $ - $ ) %00t wr s %ES 59 $ Hﬂﬂﬂohs Lepndai) voisiaadng 2ado|dws 1DLSIg palinbey
: 0] 1511 By} UO Jaay
oo $ $ [a} [roodatan3 2 21qN3 OUT JO "ui) 23JEYD SAIEHILEAT JIIEM
s333 dn
125 1UNOYIE 395 s 43 334 BN-I95 3URCDIY SW-BU0
8¥1 § ) B8] Ao PRIRUYD FIAIBE SIS ALY
LO0'T < 3 ypodag e

WeIpAH JUORINIISUOD J04 Lisedaq JiqepuniEy

2ZURYY UN0D PEOT| TZ

SISAIENY 2NUIABY PIIERUNST |BRIUUY m«mzm:q‘scu:ouum wmau ! w_ux_ncd 1507 23S A3lAaY

& xpuaddy SIBINGTY PUE SIINISG PIFR[3Y 397 203 BT SIS JO 350D
BTOT 1834 {2asit ApmS 324 sasn
PLISIG I33e uezEqE)




S Jo T aded

610Z/€/0T

915 '0/9°00R:99.44-]10] WO ACSSqU MMM (GIM
SUOIINOS JUSLILIBAQL) [BSO0T - SAN

QL5 LTTE
) s . 035 (sa1nap Jad) Q0°6TS 1.8
om,mw ”..m..h.v 384 uciPadsy| 0051529 771 g fanoy AproH PLESIG AQ PIWICHd 158] BiBH
6 .mm ....mu_ﬁ S 057TS 73807 BNy § /1507 |Bnsy 145} l
00°€S “b/E e
uosLIdwWo) op 05718 .8
saedas uosuodway oy | uesupdwod o 093 EEBG LT uospngdwe) o
Joutet e HAOUIOS ON | YOSHROWIOT ON| .1ca ) soueqduwos) 5888 LT T HOGKIEION | papnpuy pspnpus Ay
Sunsay jaA0a moppeg (2nuuy 05°£85,T /aegaou | /ey ou PAUL AQ PBULICLIB SHNS3Y 1531 JC M3IARY 12UISIA
1595580 £9°95 1.4/
9frey] so1MI3S
mopdpeg sonap Jad 078 seaf sad gps AYILOA ¢l s 10§ ES el 954 FULOBUO [BNUVY - JUISIQ
Ayauonw
2d)ey) Junsa) mopdeq €
1507 [eNDY 1507 [EnPY et [Axied pag) Sunsay
JnGyY
Aunoy WUy S2AIRS P14 PHIS)
/1503 eroy | 52 $ H::E.u. ; [Pl PLIsIG
uosuodwoy oN | vosppdwicy oy | wosupdwoy oy sz s | wosupdwo)l oy | TTT & | woswodwod on il
338U
il ¢ | somenuod jo pLIm Furssa001d IAARISILILPY IS
doy uo %51
T uBy) Jafie] - 291 Junsa] Aseinay Jaan
0sz$
SI9PW T - /T T
058 17Ny | 1800 ey L {AHzgd pag) Bunsay,
wi=ew T - ,8/5
Apeg-payL
uospodwa) o | vosuodwod) oy | uosuodwaon oyl 54 4 7IT 5 | uesusdwel oy
oozs FA3 s]0s 5 ey $302:A4BS PI3l4 PLISIQ
slRRW ,Z- 2/TT
Q€S
sIEewW LI - ,8/5 63 ${sT S el BuIs5301d BAZENSIVIWPY PLISIG
BSNGH-U
FRAIJEWUS IO 7 - 394 SU1153 ] AJBINITY 1233 Fd
ot $lsz § {uosuodwos oN| QE S | uosupdwos oy | z8 S [ sz S 10z s | o 3 14 394 dN-185 1LNoIIY PR3N 1

3 xipusddy

SDIIAIBE PUE SAIYAILDY pOlR[ay a4 10y sa8iey) 3o uosiredwo)
6107 123 [easid Aprug 334 s
NS 2FIRM LUOZRGED



5§40 7 adey &T0T//0T 9TSL9L9°008:8344-]j0L WO AQTSGU MMM (GaMm,
SUOIIN|OS JUSWLIBACE) [BI0T - SN
1507 [eniay 1500 [enpy 83z5 507 jemoy | 1503 jenioy | 3500 [Enlay 3500 491N SN|d
B bfE pizog
Aq paunniaiag noy
o745 u0sLIBEWo) oN SIE00 HOREIORY uosupdwo) oy | vosupdwen oy et |8 § | Tnumw o, Leg JaBie
0L $ | :woneeIswiny | vosuodwao) o - Aunoy
07$ A0y STRUBIEN 3 dnau
Sl - 1507 |Bnioy LT 599 3| T wnmuuw REN T 01,8/5
- Aunoy
3215 AR Ul IELRY]
Ja10jay fluswade|day /leagway Jo) Isenbay =180 9
papiaoid Buleg sinoy
1 DIAIDT UIIUM JO
ssoipIEdas adiey LET ¢ {asz 1 £ wnwiw [*ulw $IN0Y £) SINOH SSIUSAG [QUIION 14y
vosupdwo o | vosuadwoy oy | uostndwen oyl sanoy-iaye ogs uospodwon oy | vosuodwog oy | vosupdwo) o - Auno
oy
UOSHOOWDY O s s {os S 1 T winuiugg SINOH SSAUISNE [BULION
- Aunoy
234 28bUley) WIIEAS 1918 UGZEGET g
E50°ES U g
GB9'TS
W /T 1807 [BRIY | 1507 |BRidY LI [Auzg pag) |Rasu)
SOOTS pPu T
€8S
YOI F/EXB/S
24ns53ig
SENRRIE )] Aunoy o4
uosuodwos op | ucsuodwon oy 1507 {enioy vospodwes oy | vospodwon oyt vosubdwa) oy /1507 ferpy 59 | T wnwugy Sa0IALES PiRld 111
QLB'TS Yol g Apnoy
o8r'TS
MZ/TT
TI8S Woul T Fdie)
£19% o€ ¢ [ so33eau03 jO LI Buissa00.4 IARRISIUILUDY 13UISIQ
aup v/ExR/S doz uo 38T
22347 9jqnog

UCHBEISU| BIIASQ UONIDI0I moppeg] ¥

J xipuaddy

SINAIDG PUE SIPAPY POIRIDY Sy 103 soFrey) 3o vosuedwo)
GTOT 4834 129514 APRlS 234 Jasp)
JNRSIG LEM, UOZEQED



540 £ 39e4 sT0z/e/0T 9TSL 94500888140 L WO A0TSqU MMM 10,
SUOIIN|OS JUSWUIIACS |B207 - SN
SEFS Bl UBT BAJBA
QLES LT/T-T uosLpdwo) op | vospodword oy | Bd 0SS uscdeq | wosuodwol o | uesupdwo) oyl vosupdwod oy | EzE [=2) ApnoH Joqe
09851, T ue] FAIBA
F04 UOIIE[eISU] dNZp J8WeIsy] T O
57204
waspoauIa] uosuodwo oy | uosuodwes oyl £z uospipdwo) oy | uosurdwor ol ST 6% oT Seyaad 3e) pay
on $ P
yospiodiug
) o 2 uosundwas oy | uosuodwe) on | £7 ¢ | uwosupdwo) oy |uosupdwod on| ST S|zt oT Se3 Jad ey mojpA
934 Je3uey 1004 5
{aunL
086 584 UG EvS 22is 238w 05t 57 ey Auw] sAepiioH / (3wit Auv) spusaassn [INYOE'S
0sT ¥ {in1 sinoma LOIIBUU0IRY | gt s Jo ssa|pedal - INJT0:0T) SITIN Aaep 2187 Suuing uoneaneay
L SINCH-I3MY | feq suwes S 05T o o - G001 - WOy uoemiag SIuaIN
¥ 5T S NIBA, / SN $5UISNG-UON SULIRG UDIIEAIDEDY
TR awi] - 1507 {enoY
UORIIUUOISY oS OvI5 5,2 J3r0
oz 1 gueias FHOMRRUMOIRY | gy 3 81832211 05 as 181 SIA0K SSBUISNG [RULON BULING LONEADESY
0vs ie%d Aeg man 05% 5,1 03 AR
uoI3a HUOISI] "
sdiey] UOIIBUUGIDY F]
o0es
40 ysodag - 1507 0o0's 0o0'ot wsodag $1500 JOIRRUOD
BNy P3IYY
ueyq adesspuen LOSIADAWIOD GN uosLodwo) oy | vosuodwios oN
“¥I3Y> ued
sdeaspue| 2104 1 0023 40 Hsodaq 1509 wsodag fran SZT 1By 893 BUISSI00U FANBISIUILIPY
s - B i
L340 LB 101/028 2P 1aefoad palewnss [000'sS PIBYD UBld
Ou 51 BJAY ) uejd 3 Ufisaq § J3RUIEL 40 QT
oFISioRY B IO AteuiwI I ..mum%“a._u mmu_Ewm VO— BUYID v
nd : y
“MHMM“; .MM 0058 SupzzauiBug isuopadsu|
orossmd oFTS | 40 wnwup 000's 000°'s nsodag $1507) JORIUG)
B YU 51500
4057 30 usudaq HOSLIDEUIOD ON uosupdwo) oy|  vospoduio) oy
- 1507 jeny [£an EY A4 ®3 233 Fu1s580014 SARRISIVIWPY
:suciadsy|
Alluzes 315uis
5334 Hussanold pue ‘suoinadsul *yo3y) ueld F

SIIBEY IazeIedc)

uozeqey

7 xipuaddy

SATNALBG PUR SIITIAIDY PILRIDY 924 J04 s3BseyD Jo uosuedwody
BT 1234 [€I514 Aprag 333 1950
P J3IEM uOTZRYED



< 10 ¢ 98ey 9TS/"9£9°008:98.4+|0L WO A0BSqU MMM (g3

SUOIINIOS JUBLIIFAOD) {8307 - SAN

6T0Z/E/01

9£5 Jawosn)
fmou3s3 Ag
uosLadwoy pases(ay uan
on uospoduro) o | uosuodwoy o] vosuodweoy oy | wospodurer oy uosupdwog oy | ere 00t $ 1w ssajuan| €T
a5 JAMSN Ag
pasERaY UaN
SE S | PopIadsgs | 5t sjoz S | uosupdwie) o | pay 58d 055 | UGSLDGWOD ON | 19 s e 3 184 @84 ey pelimay| ¢t
{s10]
§ uewy sa1zaus) ’ 2IAIBE JAIBAY 1BNUBIO JO FUNSIXI
0578 40 Hsudag HOSLIDERUGT ON it 559 5 3 BUUIBIAQ 0] UoRYRLsU] (33124538 4O Hogay
- 3500 |eniy
sio)9|anas | ($58) 10 510] ) 5 g uosLBdWO) O £77 s {ss $ 4 3sanbay Jawolsny Ag 1924 15319y
-{lim 3uipnjul [GOTS tUoISIAPANS
$301AI3S 1ok vosLDOwe op uosLpdwos oN uosLoduwe)) oy
SAIRASIALRE | - SUOISIMPANS
401 0418 4T BAIBS 1M uosuBdwoz oy 1y $ los $ 1214 994 JuIs5530.d BATELIS|UILIPY
wifors
43137 3AL2S 1A
JUBIpAY
1507 BNy 1507 [eny | 3507 [Ny 1214 afaeyD MOJd DUid
00Z$ Jod T6TS
1394 MO 14
{03 2419} 28eyD 19197 20IAIBS ] LT

sapusdy sapesediony

3 xipuaddy

SIDINIBS PUR SIRIANDY PajeRY 334 10y 538iey) jo uosuedwo)
6102 4834 |EISI] Apmig a4 125N
IILISH IR UOZRE)




§30 G afegd 6T0Z/E/0T QTS2°929°008:9943-|0L WO ACTSHU MMM TGN
UG0S JURWWIBNYD |BIOT - SON
apacad Fud
PERIACIE Suiag sinoy (sanoy
VOSLIDAWIOY $1BINIBT UZIYM JC . .
on uosLiodw o) oN | uosuodwad oy ssa|peSas adselp vosppdwion oy | uosundwor oyl wospodwon oy | €T s |49 £ wnuupy £ Ul - sunoy Aepioy Jo ‘puanaam ‘ssaulsng
- Ajzng -uou} uoispuadng aako|d L1510 PAAnba;
SINOV-134€ 088 |2noy u} voisiuadng saA0jdw Pus|q pasinbay
noy
uospodUI) uosipdwo?) oy | uosLIBAWo? o uosLdWwo; o uosLotwe) o vostodwos o vosupdwol on |7z ¢ |59 JEIHTHTY {noy T “uiuz - SInoy ssaulsng
oN i w - 0 ON i - ON ; ) ON ) - ON - & ->_.5m1. 1e(ndau) uoisiadng avhoidw3 1usiq palinbay
UOSLIDOUIOT 529} &n 135
on vosupdwoy oy | wosuodwor oy|  uosuodwos oy | uvosupdwod oy | UOSLDOWS oN|  UOSLIDGLIOD ON enoe 538 59 LI 884 d1-195 WNod0Y SW-E00
0SS 0 sedap
vosoduioy o0 |en vosLBdwa) o UCSLILEWOS O] Fa UoSUBGLIOT 0, Auorepuew & - usoda S4B
op 3503 [enay ) 0 o ) 2 ON | 002 $ ) 7 ON 3w} auo e snyd 051 §|ousT - e JuRipAH fucioniisuo) iop usodag sjqepuniay
peoi 1ad goTS
sdieyDiwno] peo| ST
103 ey |05 1|4 {Aueg pig) dunsa)
vosupadwa
on uosupdwo) oy | uosusdwoy oyl uosuodwoy oy | uosupdwon oy |vosundwos oy | vosupdwoy oy | ZST 5| o0z p=E] 394 $IVMIIS PIAY] [/ FATRISIUILIPY PLISIG
334 LOlEIGIE3RY Ja1a
UosHEdwWoy s23) dn 135
on uosndwos oy | OF ] wosuodwod oy vosioduicd oy | uospodwon oy | wosLpdwo oN JnozoE 838 59 ey 294 d-196 WNODDY AW -IUQ
0L uenedoRy sjoyusw
OFTS ‘leaoway 124 005" 1S
Juoiieyzisy] :usodag joyuey s19131
- d lef - - seda
YT E9TS o8y O ey 05 $ 0oz’% § |UOSMOOWOT ON|  LOSIDGWO) ON | 00S'T § | 0057 ¥ d JURIPAH fUOIINLISUOD 104 1iS0da] RIgRPUNIDY
Ajgruop p0&s tuonsadsy)
H96S usedIq UOIIINIISUOT)
5354BUT J319IN 1UBIPAH [ 15181 uonBRIIsUCD]  $T

$3PuBy aanesedwo])

uozeqen

5321AJDS PUE SIRIAIPDY PaIE[3Y 89 404 SBSIRYD §O UosLEdwoD)
GTOZ 2624 123814 Ap3g 334 4380

3 xipusddy 135EQ J31BM UOTZEGED




Cabazon Wate

Annual Finanéijal pﬁeport

For the Fiscal Years Ended June:30, 2019 and 2018




Cabazon Water District
Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Cabazon Water District 4
2019

Board of Directors as of June

Ei_éﬁedl Current

Name \ Term
Robert Lynk 12/2017 - 12/2021
Alan Davis 12/2015 - 12/2019

12/2015 - 12/2019
 Appointed  12/2017 - 12/2021
Elected 12/2017 - 12/2021

Maxine Israel
Sarah Wargo

Martin Sanderson

Cabazon Water District
Calvin Louie, General Manager
14618 Broadway Street
P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230
(951) 849-4442




Cabazon Water Distr]

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018




Cabazon Water District
Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 34, 2019 and 2018

Table of Contents

Table of Contents

Introductory Section

Letter of Transmittal

Financial Section
Independent Auditor’s Report

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:
Statements of Net Position
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to the Financial Statements

Report on Internals Controls and Compliance

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Qv
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other M:
The Audits of Financial Statements Pe \
Government Auditing Standards

i

Page No.

1-3

6-10

11
12
13-14
15-31

32-33




Introductory Sec ()n







November 19, 2019

Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District

Introduction

It is our pleasure to submit the Annual Financial Report for the Cdbazon Water District for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, following guidelines set forth by the Gover nmgntal Accounting Standards
Board. District staff prepared this financial report. TheDistrict is ult[mately responsible for both the
accuracy of the data and the completeness and the fairness of ptesentatlon including all disclosures in this
financial report. We believe that the data presented is accupgte’in all material respects. This report is
designed in a manner that we believe necessary to enhance your understanding of the District’s financial
position and activities.

This report is organized into two sections: (1) Intraductory nd- (2) Fimmcial. The Izltroductory section

Management’s Discussion and An" ysm 0 c ’s basic financial statements, and the DIStllCt 8
audited basic financial statements with:accompanying notes.

Generally Accepted Accountmg Prin ples (GAAP) require that management provide a mnarrative
introduction, ovelv1ew,""and analysis toaccompany the financial statements in the form of the
Management’s Discussion and Anaiys:s (MD&A) section. This letter of transmittal is designed to
contplement the MD&A"all‘ should bg read in conjunction with it. The District’s MD&A can be found
immediately after the Indepen' T itor’s Report.

ip
The Cabazon Water District is an independent special district, which operates under the authority of
Division 12 of the California Water Code. The District was formed in 1954 and is governed by a five-
member Board of Directors, elected at-large from within the District’s service area. The General
Manager administers the day-to-day operations of the District in accordance with policies and procedures
established by the Board of Directors. The District employs six (6) full-time employees organized into
two departments. The District’s Board of Directors meets each month. Meetings are publicly noticed and
citizens are encouraged to attend.

District Structure and Leader

The District provides water service to approximately 1,000 customers within its 7,040 acre service area,
located in the eastern portion of Riverside County. The District encompasses the unincorporated town of
Cabazon and some of the unincorporated areas of Riverside County, California.




District Services

Residential customers are approximately 97% of the District’s customer base and consume approximately
90% of the water produced annually by the District. The Distriet currently has a total of four groundwater
wells with a maximum production capacity of 3,160 gallons per minute.

Economic Condition and Outlook

The District office is located in the unincorporated town of Cabazon in Riverside County. Regional
growth has been slow to recover from the continuing effects of the dissolution of Redevelopment
Agencies throughout the State.

Internal Control Structure

District management is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the internal control structure
that ensures the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The internal control
structure also ensures adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles: The District’s internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that these _ob ctives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a contro! should tiot exceed the benefits likely to be
derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits require estimates and judgments by management.

Budgetary Control

F'capital budget prior to the new fiscal

The District Board of Directors annuaily adopts an opél ting
g and control of financial operations and

vear. The budget authorizes and provides the basis for re;
accountability for the District’s enterprise operatio
treatment applied to the District is consistent ‘with: the.. 1alibasis of accounting and the financial
statement basis. -

Investment PoIicy

District policy direction ensures that all revenues from user charges and surcharges generated from
District customers must suppoit, all District operations including capital project funding. Accordingly,
water rates are reviewed on an annual basis. Water rates are user charges imposed on customers for
services and are the primary component of the District’s revenue. Water rates are composed of a

commodity {(usage) charge and a fixed meter standby charge.

Audit and Financial Reporting

State Law and debt covenants require the District to obtain an annual audit of its financial statements by
an independent certified public accountant. The accounting firm of Fedak & Brown LLP has conducted
the audit of the District’s financial statements. Their unmodified Independent Auditor’s Report appears
in the Financial Section.




Other References

More information is contained in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements found in the Financial Section of the report.

Acknowledgements

Preparation of this report was accomplished by the combined efforts of District staff. We appreciate the
dedicated efforts and professionalism that these staff members contribute to the District. We would also
like to thank the members of the Board of Directors for their continued support in planning and
implementation of the Cabazon Water District’s fiscal policies.

Respectfully submitted,

Calvin Louie
General Manager




< Page Intentionally Left Blank >




Financial Section







Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District
Cabazon, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Cabazon Water District (District) as of and
for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed inithe table of contents.

Muanagement’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair preséntation-of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in‘thie United Stai es of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of interpa": ntrol relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from' material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion omn. e f anclal ‘statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance witl auditmg tandards genelaliy accepted in the United States of
America, the standards applicable to fii ik contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the_U" ited States, and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements
for California Special Districts. Those standards: lequue that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whe er the firiancial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves per Iormmg procedures .obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statement os selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of (haterial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the finangial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Cabazon Water District, as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the

respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,




Independent Auditor’s Report, continued
Other Mutters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information on pages 6 through 10 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial staterents,
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the informatign because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or de any assurance.

Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an~opinion on-the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. .The introduétory section on pages |
through 3, are presented for purposes of additional ai ysts nd are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. '

Other Reporting Required by Govermnment Audmng Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Srandarca_'@, we have: also lssued our 1ep01t dated Novembel 19

compliance with certain provision
matters. The purpose of that repot

legulatmns contracts and grant agreements, and other
e the scOpe of our testmg of inter na! contr 0] over ﬁnanmal

financial reporting and ¢ mphance “This repott can be found on pages 32 and 33.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
November 19, 2019




Cabazon Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance
of the Cabazon Water District (District) provide an introduction to the financial statements of the District
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with the transmittal letter in the Introductory section and with the basic
financial statemenis and related notes, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

e In fiscal year 2019, the District’s net position decreased 0.42% or $32,312 to $7,657,909. In fiscal
year 2018, the District’s net position increased 3.31% or $246,698 to $7,690,211.

e In fiscal year 2019, the District’s operating revenues increased 2.75% or $40,236, to $1,503,380.
In fiscal year 2018, the District’s operating revenues increased 21.96% or $263.445 to
$1,463,144.

o In fiscal year 2019, the District’s operating expenses incieased 19.24% or $210,384 to
$1,303,628. In 2018, the District’s operating expenses increased 0.51% or $5.512 to $1,093,244.

Required Financial Statements

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements; The Statements.of Net Position, Statements
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, ancE'j, tatements of Cash Flows provide information
about the activities and performance of the District using cco""'ltmg methods similar to those used by
private sector companies. "

The Statements of Net Position include all of theDi
outflows of resources, the obligations to creditors’(lia
also pr ovide the basis for computing a rate of retu
assessing the 11q111d1ty and financial flexibility
accounted for in the Statements of Revenues Expenses and Changes in Net Position. These statements
measure the success of the Dlstuc‘{’s _operations-over ‘the past years and can be used to determine if the
District has successtully recovered all:ofils costs thlough its rates and other charges. These statements
can also be used to evaluate:j rofitability and credit worthiness. The final required financial statements are
the Statements of Cash Flows, whigl piowde information about the District’s cash receipts and cash
payments during the reporting period. The Statements of Cash Flows report cash receipts, cash payments,
and net changes in cash lesultmg trom Gperations, investing, non-capital financing, and capital and related
financing activities. as well ‘as:providing answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what
was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period.

1_'_i_ct’s in __:_S‘tments in resources (assets) deferred

Financial Analysis of the District

One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off or
worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report information about the District in a way that
helps answer this question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred
inflows using the gecrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private
sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardiess of
when the cash is received or paid.




Cabazon Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Financial Analysis of the District, continued

These two statements report the District’s nef position and changes in them. One can think of the
District’s net position (the difference between assets and deferred outflows, and liabilities and deferred
inflows), as one way to measure the District’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases
or decreases in the District’s net position is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic
conditions, population growth, zoning, and new or changed government legislation, such as changes in
Federal and State water quality standards.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 15
through 31,

Statements of Net Position

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a usefu__,. dicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the District, assets of the District: i

$7.690,221 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

By far the largest portion of the District’s net position

provide services to customers within the Dist '
available for future spending.

2018 Change

Assets:

Current assets 1,325,053 £,211,877 113,176
Capital assets, net 7,380,775 7,650,546 (269,771)
Total assets ‘ 8,705,828 8,862,423 {156,595)
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 214,070 217,957 {3,887
Non-current liabilities 833,849 954,245 {120,396)
Total liabilities 1,047,919 1,172,202 {124,283)
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 6,426,530 6,579,006 (152,476)
Restricted for debt service 61,826 61,138 688
Unrestricted 1,169,553 1,050,077 119,476
Total net position 5 7,657,909 7,690,221 (32,312)




Cabazon Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continned
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

2019 2018 Change
Revenues:
QOperating revenues $ 1,503,380 1,463,144 40,236
Non-operating revenues 106,183 99,468 6,715
Total revenues 1,609,563 1,562,612 46,951
Expenses:
Operating expenses 1,303,628 1,093,244 210,384
Depreciation 318,432 322,482 {4,050)
Non-operating expenses 19,815 22,383 {2,568)
Total expenses 1,641,875 203,766
Net income(loss) before capital
contributions (156,815)
Capital contributions 122:195 (122,195)
Changes in net position 246,698 (279,010)
Net position, beginning
of year 7,443,523 246,698

Net position, end of year 7,690,221 (32,312)

The statements of revenues, expe
changed during the fiscal years,

s of changes in net position reveals that:

strict’s net osnﬁ}n decreased 0.42% or $32,312 to $7,657,909. In fiscal year
osition incigased 3.31% or $246,698 to $7,690,211. See note 7 for further

A closer examination of th

In fiscal year 2019, th
2018, the District’s n
discussion.

In fiscal year 2019, the Districtis perating revenues increased 2.75% or $40,236, due primarily to an
increase of $79,594 in water consumption sales; which was offset by a decrease of $36,738 in facility
fees. In fiscal year 2018, the District’s operating revenues increased 21.96% or $263,445, due primarily
to increases of $224,221 in water consumption sales and $26,416 in facility fees.

In fiscal year 2019, the District’s operating expenses increased 19.24% or $210,384, due primarily to
increases of $127,931 in transmission and distribution and $94,829 in general and administrative. In
2018, the District’s operating expenses increased 0.51% or $5,512, due primarily to increases of $27,743
in general and administrative expenses and $15,902 in pumping and water treatment; which were offset
by a decrease of $41,952 in transmission and distribution.




Cabazon Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2619 and 2018

Capital Asset Administration

At the end of fiscal years 2019 and 2018, the District’s investment in capital assets amounted to
$7,380,775 and $7,650,546 {net of accumulated depreciation), respectively. This investment in capital
assets includes land, transmission and distribution systems, wells, tanks, reservoirs, pumps, buildings and
structures, equipment, vehicles, and construction-in-process, etc. Major capital assets additions during the
years include improvements to the transmission and distribution system, source of supply, and purchase

of vehicles,

Changes in capital assets for 2019 were as follows:

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
2018 Transfers Transfers 2019
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets $ 803,714 {12,029) 840,755
Depreciable assets 12,198,969 - 12,210,589
Accumulated depreciation (5,352,131 - {5,670,569)
Total capital assets, net 5 7,650,546 {12,029) 7,380,775
Changes in capital assets for 2018 were as follows:
Balance Deletions/ Balance
0¥ Transfers 2018
Capital assets;
Non-depreciable assets 184,782 (159,465) 803,714
Depreciable assets 159,465 - 12,198,970
Accumulated depreciation (322,482) - (5,352,138)
Total capital assets, net 7,788,246 21,765 (159,465) 7,650,546
Changes in long-term debt in . > as follows:
E Balance Balance
2018 Additions Payments 2019
Long-term debt;
Loans payable $ 1,071,540 - (117,295) 954,245
Total loans payable $ 1,071,540 - (117,295) 954,245




Cabazon Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Debt Administration, continued

Changes in long-term debt in 2018 were as follows:

Balance Balance
2017 Additions Payments 2018
Long-term debt:
Loans payable b 1,185,796 - {114,256) 1,071,540
Total loans payable $ 1,185,796 - {114,256) 1,071,540

Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position

Management is unaware of any conditions which could have a significant impact on the District’s current
financial position, net position, or operating results in terms of past, present, and future,

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s fundmg sources, customers, stakeholders, and
other interested parties with an overview of the District’s financial opelatlons and financial condition.
Should the reader have guestions regarding the information included in thls :report or wish to request
additional financial information, please contact the Dis '_"'al Manager at 14618 Broadway Street,
P.O. Box 297, Cabazon, California 92230. '




Basic Financial Statements




Cabazon Water District
Statements of Net Position

June 30, 2019 and 2018
2019 2018
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents {note 2) $ 910,913 811,600
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted (note 2) 61,826 61,138
Accrued interest receivable 3,957 2,457
Accounts receivable — water sales, net {note 3) 206,521 206,903
Property taxes and assessments receivable 3,722 16,098
Materials and supplies inventory 104,142 93,672
Prepaid and other assets 33,972 20,009
Total current assets 1,325,053 1,211,877
Non-current assets:
Capital assets — non-depreciable assets (note 4) /840,755 803,714
Capital assets — depreciable assets, net (note 4) 6,846,832
Total non-~current assets 7,650,546
Total assets 8,862,423
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 55,976 61,558
Accrued wages and related payables 8.149 8,118
Customer advances and deposits 11,748 15,710
Accrued interest payable on long-term deb 4,449 5,225
Long-term liabilities — due within one year:.
Compensated absences (note 5) = 13,352 10,051
Loans payable (note 6. B 120,396 117,295
Total current liabil 214,070 217,957
Non-current liabilities: -
Long-term liabilities — due in more than one year:
Loans payablé: 833,849 954,245
Total non-current:liabilities 833,849 054,245
Total liabilities 1,047,919 1,172,202
Net position: (note 7)
Net investment in capital assets 6,426,530 6,379,006
Restricted 61,826 61,138
Unrestricted 1,169,553 1,050,077
Total net position $ 7,657,909 7,690,221

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

11




Cabazon Water District
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Operating revenues:
Watet consumption sales $ 1,325,926 1,246,332
Connection fees 3,520 2,477
Standby fees 109,997 110,539
Facility fees 17,358 54,096
Other charges 46,579 49,700
Total operating revenues 1,503,380 1,463,144
Operating expenses:
Pumping and water treatment 128,047 144,355
Transmission and distribution 150,425 22,494
Customer accounts 50,052
General and administrative 876,343
Total operating expenses 1,093,244
Operating income before depreciation =N
and amottization 199,752 369,900
Depreciation (318,432) (322,482)
Operating income(loss) {118,680) 47,418
Non-operating revenue(expense)
Property taxes _ 60,146 69,449
Rental income — cellular ante: :_e)'s 24,555 22,068
Investment earnings ' 21,839 7,275
(19,815) {22,383)
(357) 676
86,368 77,085
(32,312) 124,503
Captial contributions
Contributed capital assets - 122,195
Changes in net position (32,312) 246,698
Net position, beginning of year 7,690,221 7,443,523
Net position, end of year $ 7,657,909 7,690,221

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements




Cabazon Water District
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from customers for water sales $ 1,389,803 1,333,229
Proceeds from standby fees 109,997 110,539
Cash paid to employees for salaries and wages (322,258) (273,485)
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials
and services (1,008,410) (836,075
Net cash provided by operating activities 169,132 334,208
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Proceeds from rental income — cellular antennas 24,555 22,068
Proceeds from property taxes 72,522 08,221
Net cash provided by non-capital financing ‘
activities 97,077 90,289
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets {48.661) (87,730)
Proceeds from capital contributions - 25,143
Principal paid on long-term debt (117,295) (114,256)
Interest paid on long-term debt {20,591) (23,138)
Net cash used in capital and related financiz
activities (186,547 (199,981)
Cash flows from investing activities;:
Interest earnings 20,339 5,630
Net cash provided by inves ng ac - 20,339 5,630
Net increase :j:_l,fl"é':is'll-‘ and’ ash equivalents 100,001 230,146
Cash and cash equivalehts, beginniﬁg_"bf year 872,738 642,592
Cash and cash equivalen%s,:’end of yea $ 972,739 872,738
Reconciliation of cash and cashaeciuivalents fo
statements of net position:
Cash and cash equivalents b 910,913 811,600
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted 61,826 61,138
Total cash and cash equivalents A 972,739 872,738

Continued on next page

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements




Cabazon Water District
Statements of Cash Flows, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Reconciliation of operating income(loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income(loss) $ (118,680) 47,418
Adjustments to reconcile operating income(loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 318,432 322,482
Other non-operating (357) 676
Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase)decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable — water sales and services, net 382 (4,917
Materials and supplies inventory ' {10,470) (13,234)
Prepaid and other assets ‘ (13,963) (107)
Increase(decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (5,582) 4,827)
Accrued wages and related payables 3 1,395
Compensated absences 3,301 (219)
Customer advances and deposits (3,962) (14,459)
Total adjustments 287,812 286,790
Net cash provided by operating activiti 169,132 334,208
Non-cash investing, capital, and financing trans:cti
$ 2,131 (4,568)
Capital contributions - 97,052
$ 2,131 92,484

See accompanying i

14




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity

The Cabazon Water District (District) was formed on May 21, 1954, and provides potable water and
water services within a 7,040 acre service area between the cities of Beaumont and Palm Springs within
the County of Riverside. The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors who serves four
year terms.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the Disirict
is that the costs of providing water to its service area on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges (water sales), capital grants, and similar funding. Revenues and expenses
are recognized on the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues ate r cogmzed in the accounting period
in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the pericdzincurred, regardless of when the
related cash flows take place.

Operating revenues and expenses, such as water sales an, ' ases, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the Disty ihsactions are those in which
each party receives and gives up essentially equal value ‘Management, admittistration, and depreciation
expenses are also considered operating expenses. Other Svenue and expenses not included in the above
categories are repoited as non-operating revenues and expen

C. Financial Reporting

The District’s basic financial statement have been, pre iit conformity with accounting principles
genexally accepted in the United States of ‘Americd (GAAP), as applied to governmental entities. The
" Boa (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for

reporting principles.

Statement No. 83 — Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. This
ng -financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations
(AROQs), (2) establishes:criteria for détermining the timing and pattein of recognition of a liabitity and a
corresponding deferred outtlow of 1e§0utces for AROs, (3) requires that recognition occur when the
liability is both incurred and:reasona y estimable, (4) requires the measurement of an ARO to be based
on the best estimate of the curtent.y ___'1ue of outlays expected to be incurred, (3) requires the current value
of a government’s AROs to be adjusted for the effects of general inflation or deflation at least annually,
and (6) requires disclosure of information about the nature of a government’s ARQOs, the methods and
assumptions used for the estimates of the liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life of the
associated tangible capital assets.

In April 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 88 — Certain Disclosures Related to Debt Including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the information
that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings
and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing
information related to debt.

This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements as a liability that
arises from a contractual abligation to pay cash {or other assets that may be used in lieu of cash) in one or
moie paynents to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual abligation is established.

15




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
C. Financial Reporting, continued

This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to
financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms
specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences,
significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration
clauses.

For notes to financial statements related to debt, this Statement also requires that existing and additional
information be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt,

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position
1. Use of Estimates

th generally accepted accounting
3 that affect the Leported amounts

The plepalation of the basic financial statements in conformity

of contlngent assets, deferred outflows oi 1esomces, li
the date of the financial statements and the reported
period, Actual results could differ from those estimat

2, Cash and Cash Equivalents

all highly liquid investments with a maturity
equivalents.

3. Investments

deems customer accoun
wirite-off of those accounts.

5. Property Taxes and Assessments

The County of Riverside Assessor’s Office assesses all real and personal property within the County
each year. The County of Riverside Tax Collector’s Office bills and collects the District’s share of
property taxes and assessments. In [993, the County adopted the alternative method of secured
propetty tax apportionment available under Chapter 3, Part 8, Division | (commencing section 4701)
of the Revenue and Taxation Code of the State (also known as the “Teeter Plan”™). This alternative
method provides for funding each taxing entity included in the Teeter Plan with its total secured
property taxes during the year the taxes are levied, including any amount uncollected at fiscal year-
end. Under this plan, the County assumes an obligation under a debenture or similar demand
obligation to advance funds to cover expected delinquencies, and by such financing, the District
receives the full amount of secured property taxes levied each year and, therefore, no longer
experiences definquent taxes. Property tax in California is fevied in accordance with Article 13A of
the State Constitution at one percent {1%) of countywide assessed valuations.




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(I) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
D. Assets, Deferred Outtlows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position, continned

5. Property Taxes and Assessments, continued

Property taxes receivable at year-end are related to property taxes collecied by the County of
Riverside, which have not been credited to the District's cash balance as of June 30, The property tax
calendar is as follows:

Lien date March |

Levy date July 1

Due dates November | and March |
Collection dates December 10 and April 10

6. Materials and Supplies Inventory

Materials and supplies inventory consists primarily of water metefs, and pipes and pipefittings for
construction and repair of the District’s water transmission listribution system. Inventory is
valued at cost using a first-in, first-out cost method. Inventory itenis are charged to expense at the

time that individual items are withdrawn from inventory ge consumed.

7. Prepaid Expenses

able to future accounting periods and are

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or dep031ts
recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial Statement. :

8. Capital Assets

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are cap;tahzed at ‘historical cost. District policy has set the
capitalization threshold for reporting ilal asseis at $1,000. Donated assets are recorded at estimated
fair market value at the date 0nat10n' Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation‘are: 1emoved from the respective balances, and any gains or
losses are recognized. Depreciation is ‘recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follow

e Transmissionand distribiition mdins — 15 to 40 years

Reservoirs _d tanks — 10 to 40 years

* & & >

Office furniture and equipment - 5 to 10 yeats
s Tools and equipment — 7 to 20 years
¢ Vehicles — 5 years
9. Compensated Absences
The District’s policy is to permit employees to accumulate earned vacation up to a total of 240 hours
with amounts exceeding the limit being paid out as part of the employee’s regular compensation.

Upon termination of employment, employees are paid all unused vacation and 50% of any unused
sick time for non-exempt employees.




M
D.

(2)

Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position, continued
10. Net Position

The District follows the financial reporting requirements of the GASB and reports net position under
the following classifications:

e Net investment in capital assets component of net position — this component of net position
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by any debt
outstanding against the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are included in this
component of net position

e Restricted component of net position — this component of:
have restrictions placed upon their use by external cor
(debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws aid
constraints imposed by law through enabling legislation.

position consists of assets that
ints imposed either by creditors
lations of other governments or

s Unrestricted component of nef position — this component of net position is the net amount of
the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that
are not included in the determination of the*tiet-Tnvestment in capital assets or restricted
component of net position. '

11. Water Sales

Water sales are billed on a monthly
has been accrued at year-end.

Estimated unbilled water revenue through June 30

12. Budgetary Policies

The District adopts an annual non-apptopriated budget for planning, control, and evaluation purposes.
Budgetary control andi{': valuallon are:affected by comparisons of actual revenues and expenses with
planned revenues and’expenses” fOJ the period. Encumbrance accountmg is not used to account for
commitnients related: "d contracts for construction and services.

Cash and Investﬂie 1

Cash and investments as of June30, are classitied in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents 3 910,913 811,600
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted 61,826 61,138
Total $ 972,739 872,738
Cash and investments as of June 30, consist of the following;
2019 2018
Cash on hand $ 100 100
Deposits with bank 274,881 255,152
[nvestments 697,758 617,486
Total 3 072,735 872,738




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
(2) Cash and Investments, continued

As of June 30, the District’s authorized deposits had the following maturities:
2019 2018

Deposits in California Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) 173 days 193 days

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are anthorized by the District in accordance with the
California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy,
where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Percentage Investment
of Portfolio in One Issuer

Authorized
Investment Type

U.S. Treasury obligations None
Federal agency and bank obligations None
Certificates-of-deposit (negotiable or placed) 30% 10%
Commercial paper {prime) 10% 10%
Money market mutnal funds 20% None
State and local bonds, notes, and warrants None None
California Local Agency Investment Fu None None

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits
institution, a government will not be abl
secur mes that are m the possessmn ofa

hat, e event of the failure of a depository financial
o recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
itside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk
ume;_ ‘party (e , broker- deaiel) to a tlansactlon a government will

ustod:al credit risk does not apply to a focal government’s indirect

investment in securities througl the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).

The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than
the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided coliateral
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least |10% of the total amount
deposited by public agencies.

Of the bank balances, up to $250,000 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, is federally insured and the remaining
balance is collateralized in accordance with the Code; however, the collateralized securities are not held
in the District’s name.

19




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(2) Cash and Investments, continued
Investment in State Invesiment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair
value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at
amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based
ot the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

The District’s deposit and withdrawal restrictions and limitations are as follows:

¢ Same day transaction processing occurs for orders received before 10:00 a.m.

e Next day transaction processing occurs for orders received after 10:00 a.m.

e Maximum limit of 15 transactions (combination of deposits andiwithdrawals) per month,
s Minimum transaction amount requirement of $5,000, in increménts of $1,000.

o Withdrawals of $10,000,000 or more require 24 hours adyvi
e Prior to funds transfer, an authorized person must call L/

erbal transaction.

Interest Rate Risk

iill adversely affect the fair value of an
e greater the sensitivity of its fair value
rict can manage its exposure to interest
rate risk is by pmchasmg a combmatlon of shoﬁ ger ternt investments and by timing cash
flows from maturities so that a portion of the pottfolio matures or comes close to maturity evenly over
time as necessary to provide for cash flowirequirerr and liquidity needed for operations.

Information about the sensitivity of t e fair values ‘0 he District’s investments to market interest rate
fluctuations is provided by the follo wing table:tiiat: shows the distribution of the District’s investmients by
maturity date.

Maturities of investmen une 30;:201 9, consisted of the following:

Remaining maturity
12 months

i) i Total or less
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) ¥ 635,932 635,932
Held by bond trustee:
Money market funds 61,826 61,826
$ 697,758 697,758

20




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiseal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
(2) Cash and Investments, continued
Interest Rate Risk, continued
Maturities of investments af June 30, 2018, consisted of the following:

Remaining maturity

12 months
Investment Type Total or less
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) b 556,348 556,348
Held by bond trustee:
Money market funds 61,138 61,138
$ 617,486 617,486
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not At ilfill-its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nauomily recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating requir d by the Callfotma Government Code (whete
applicable), the District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for
each investment type. '

Credit ratings of investments as of June 30, 2019

Miimum Rating as of

= Jegal year-end Not

Investment Type rating AAA Rated

Local Agency Investment Fund (L.AIF) N/A - 635,932

Held by bond trustee:

Money market funds AAA 61,826 -
61,826 635,932
Credit ratings of investments® e 30, 2018, were as follows:
Minimum Rating as of
legal year-end Not
Investment Type Total rating AAA Rated

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 3 556,348 N/A - 556,348
Held by bond trustee:

Money market funds 61,138 AAA 61,138 -

$ 617,486 61,138 556,348

21




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(2) Cash and Investments, continued
Concentration of Credit Risk

The District’s investment policy contains no limitations on the amounts that can be invested in any one
issuer as beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. There were no investmenis in any
one issuer (other than for U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that
represent 5% or more of total District’s investiments as of June 30, 2019 and 2018,

(3) Accounts Receivable

The balance at June 30 consists of the following:

2019 2018
Accounts receivable - water sales and services ¥ 236,679 233,717
Allowance for uncollectible accounts {26,814)
206,903

22




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statemen(s, confinued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(4) Capital Assets

Change in capital assets for 2019 was as follows:

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
2018 Transfers Transfers 2019
Non-depreciable assets:
Land b 689,548 - - 689,548
Construction-in-process 114,166 49,070 {12,029) 151,207
Total non-depreciable assets 803,714 49.070 (12,029) 840,755
Depreciable assets:
Transmission and distribution mains 10,313,196 3,200 - 10,316,396
Source of supply £,552,225 & - 1,552,225
Water treatment 8,800 - 8,800
Tools and equipment 123,319 - 123,319
Buildings and structures [2,281 - 12,281
Office furniture and equipment 71,808 - 71,808
Vehicles : - 114,728
Intangible plant - 11,032
Total depreciable assets - 12,210,589

- Accumulated depreciation:

* Transmission and distribution mains (246,929) - {4,795,490)
Source of supply (58,606) - (567,276)
Water Treatment {1,760) - (7,333)
Tools and equipment (875) - {120,423)
Buildings and structures (745) - (6,114)
Office furniture and equipment (57,379) {5,224) - {62,603)
Vehicles ' (96,005) {4,293) - (100,298)
Intangible plant {11,032) - - {11,032)

Total accumulated depreciati (5,352,137) (318,432) - (5.670,569)
Total depreciable assets, net 6,840,832 (306,812) - 6,540,020
Total capital assets, net $ 7,650,546 7,380,775

Major capital assets additions during the year include improvements to the District’s transmission and

distribution mains and purchase of vehicle,

23




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 34, 2019 and 2018
(4) Capital Assets, continued

Change in capital assets for 2018 was as follows:

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
2017 Transfers Transfers 2018
Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 689,548 - - 689,548
Construction-in-process 88,849 184,782 {159,465) 114,166
Total non-depreciable assets 778,397 184,782 (159,465) 803,714
Depreciable assets:
Transmission and distribution mains 10,173,269 139,927 - 10,313,196
Source of supply [,541,488 19,538 - 1,561,026
Tools and equipment 123,319 ' - 123,319
Buildings and structures 12,281 - 12,281
Office furniture and equipment 71,808 - 71,808
Vehicles 106,308 - 106,308
Intangible plant - 11,032
Total depreciable assets - 12,198,970
Accumulated depreciation:
Transmission and distribution mains - (4.548,561)
Source of supply - (514.244)
Tools and equipment - (119,548)
Buildings and structures - (5,369)
Office furniture and equipment - {57,379)
Vehicles 2611) (3,394) - (96,005)
[ntangible plant {11,032) - - {11,032)
Total accumulated depreciation - 245,029,656) (322,482) - {5,352,138)
Total depreciable assets, ne 7,009,849 (163,017) - 6,846,832
Total capital assets, net 7,788,246 7,650,546

Major capital assets additions dﬁi’ing the year include improvements to the District’s transmission and

distribution mains and source of supply.

24




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
{(5) Compensated Absences

The changes in compensated absences balance at June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Balance Balance
2018 Additions Deletions 2019
3 10,051 21,846 (18,545) 13,352

The changes in compensated absences balance at June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Balance Balance
2017 Additions Peletions 2018
$ 10,270 20,096 (20,315) 10,051

(6) Long-Term Debt

Changes in long-term debt in 2019 were as follows:

Principal Balance
_ Additions Payments 2019
1993 Calit. Dept. of Water Resources Loan - E58416 - (38,425) 318,499
Zions First National Bank - (78.870) 335,746
Riverside County Economic Development Agency - - 300,000
Total long-term debt - (117.295) 954,245
Less current portion {120,396)
Total non-current 833,849
Changes in long-term debt in.
Balance Principal Balance
2017 Additions Payments 2018
1993 Calif, Dept. of Water Resources Li $ 394,238 - 37.314) 356,924
Zions First National Bank 491,558 - {76,942) 414,616
Riverside County Economic Development Ageilcy 300,000 - - 300,000
Total tong-term debt 1,185,796 - (114,256) 1,071,540
Less current portion (114,256} (117,293)
Total non-current b 1,071,540 954,243

25




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(6) Long-Term Debt, continued
1993 California Dept. of Water Resources Loan - E58416

In 1993, the Cabazon Water District contracted with the California Department of Water Resources for a
$979,860, 30-year loan under the 1984 California Safe Drinking Water Bond Law to fund capital
improvements in order to comply with the California Safe Drinking Water Standards. Terms of the loan
call for monthly debt service deposits by the District with a trustee. Principal and interest payments of
$24,346 are payable semi-annually on October 1** and April [* each year at a rate of 2.955%, with the
obligation maturing in 2027, Annual debt service requirements on the 1993 California Dept. of Water
Resources Loan are as follows;

Fiscal Year Principal Inferest Total
2020 $ 39,550 9,141 48,691
2021 40,763 48,691

2022 41,959 48,691
2023 43,208 48,691
2024 44,487 48,691
2025-2027 108,532 113,136
Total 318,499 356,591

Current {39,550)

Non-current  $

Zions First National Bank

n agreement with Zions First National Bank in the

93 Cali Dept. of Water Resources Loan — E62039, and
ahd uipgrade of District transmission mains, Terms of the loan call
aof principal and interest payable on April 1% and October I* of
in.2023. Annual debt service requirements on the foan are as

rincipal Interest Total

2020 80,846 7.857 88,703
2021 82,872 5,831 88,703
2022 84,948 3,755 88,703
2023 87,080 1,623 88,703
Total 335,746 19,066 354,812
Current (80,846)
Non-current  § 254,900

26




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(6) Long-Term Debt, continued

Riverside County Econoniic Development Agency

In 1997, the Cabazon Water District coniracted with the Riverside County Economic Development
Agency for a $300,000 loan to construct water improvements, in conjunction with MKA Cabazon
Partnership Construction Agreement. The agreement calls for a zero interest loan with funds to be repaid
with connection fees as development occurs. The unpaid balance has been classified as long-term as no
connections are anticipated in 2019.

(7)  Net Position

Calculation of net position as of June 30 was as follows:

2018
Net investment in capital assets:
Capital assets, net 7,650,346
Loans payable — current portion (117,295)
L.oans payable — non-current portion {954.245)
Total net investment in capital asset 6,579,006
Restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted 61,826 61,138
Total restricted ' 61,826 61,138
Unrestricted: o
Non-spendable unrestricted: ';:éif'ﬁpﬁition
Materials and supplies inventory 104,142 93,672
Prepaid and other ass ] 33,972 20,009
138,114 113,681
1,031,439 936,396
1,031,439 936,396
Total unrestri 1,169,553 1,050,077
Total net position $ 7,657,909 7,690,221

(8) Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The District provides pension benefits to all covered employees under the Collective Bargaining
Agreement to the Service Employees International Union National Industry Pension Fund. The District’s
contribution is based on 15% of gross wages. The District’s contributions to the Plan were $59,895 and
$61,229 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

27




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(9)  Deferred Compensation Savings Plan

In 2003, as amended in 2008, the District offered a Profit Sharing 401(a) Plan (Plan), to qualified
employees. Participation in the Plan is open to employees who do not meet the eligibility requirements for
pension benefits under the terms of a separate collective bargaining agreement. At June 30, 2019 and

2018, the Plan included two participants. The market value of all assets held in trust by the District’s
401(a) Plan at June 30, 2019 and 2018, amounted to $201,163 and $169,951, respectively.

(10) Risk Management

The Diistrict is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is insured for a
variety of potential exposures. The following is a summary of the insurance policies carried by the
District as of June 30, 2019:

e Property: Blanket limit of $6,058,000 with a $1,000 deductible per incident,
o  Property damage: $1,000,000 per occurrence and $10,000 1 the aggregate,

¢ Personal and advertising injury: $1,000,000 per pelson-ﬂ
agglegate

o Employment practices liability: $1,000,000 per
$1,000 deductible.

$1,000 deductible.
Automobile: $1,000,000 per oce

$300 deductible.
a 31,000 deductible.

: \‘ ..oald (GASB) has issued several pronouncements prior to the
issue date, that has effectlve dates that fnay impact future financial presentations,

Governmental Accountmg 5 andmds oard Statement No. 84

In January 2017, the GASB i3 Statement No. 84 — Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this
Statement is to improve guidanceé regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.

This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included
to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary
activities.

This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension {and other
employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial
funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent
arrangement that meets specific criteria,

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018,
Earlier application is encouraged.

28




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(11) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement Na. 87 — Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting
for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments® financial statements
by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for feases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset, Under this Statement, a lessee is
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about governments® leasing activities.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting peri
Earlier application is encouraged.

ginning after December 15, 2019,

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No 8

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89 — Acco m‘mg Joi
of a Consiruction Period. The objectives of this Statement
comparability of information about capital assets and the co
to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end o

Interest Cost incurred Before the End
(1) to enhance the relevance and
" borrowing for a reporting period and (2)
consn uction period.

This Statement establishes accounting requiren ‘énts b mtelest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period. Such interest cost-includes all“interest that previously was accounted for in

Pronouncements, which are sup
incurred before the end of a .

mancial statements prepared using the current financial resources
c¢urred before the end of a construction period shoukd be recognized as
with governmental fund accounting principles.

This Statement also 1elte;a e
measurement focus, interest ¢
an expenditure on a basis consis

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019,
Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements of this Statement should be applied prospectively.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 90

In August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No, 90 — Majority Equity Inferests—an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 61, The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency
and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units, It defines a
majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
should be reported as an investment if a government’s holding of the equity interest meets the definition
of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be measured
using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary
activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent
fumd. Those governmenis and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value.

29




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(11) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accotunting Standards Board Statement No. 90, continned

For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization, a government should
report the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the government or fund that holds the
equity interest should report an asset related to the majority equity interest using the equity method. This
Statement establishes that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization results
in the government being tinancially accountabte for the legally separate organization and, therefore, the
government should report that organization as a component unit,

This Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a [00 percent equity
interest account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources
at acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 100 percent equity interest in the component
unit. Transactions presented in flows statements of the component it in that circumstance should
include only transactions that occurred subsequent to the acquisitio

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting et ods bepinning after December [5, 2018,
Ea1he1 apphcatlon is encomaged The 1equ11ements sho id be applied-igtroactively, except for the
S ‘unit and (2) reporting a
component unit if the goven}ment acquires a 100 per¢
applied on a prospective basis.

01'tin,§:';e0nduit debt obligations by issuers and
: nmitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements

of additional commitments: (ntary onumtments extended by issters and arrangements associated
with conduit debt obligations; and improving-tequired note disclosures.

This Statement also addrdsses arrangements—often characterized as leases—that are associated with
conduit debt obligations. Ifi thoses-arrangements, capital assets are constructed or acquired with the
proceeds of a conduit debt obl '\ ation and used by third-party obligors in the course of their activities.
Payments from third-party obligors are intended to cover and coincide with debt service payments.
During those arrangements, issuers retain the titles to the capital assets. Those titles may or may not pass
to the obligors at the end of the arrangements.

This Statement requires issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt obligations,
organized by type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the issuers’
conduit debt obligations and a description of each type of commitiment. Issuers that recognize liabilities
related to supporting the debt service of conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about
the amount recognized and how the liabilities changed during the reporting period.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020,
Earlier application is encouraged.

30




Cabazon Water District
Notes to the Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(12) Commitments and Contingencies
Grant Awards

Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Such audit could lead to
requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.
Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant.

Litigation

In the ordinary cowrse of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties,
After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any,
will not materially affect its financial condition.

(13) Subsequent Events

Events occuwring after June 30, 2019, have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial
statements or disclosure as of November 19, 2019, which is the:dfate the financial statements were
available fo be issued.

31




< Page Intentionaily Lieft Blank >




Report on Internal Controls and Compliance







Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on the Audits of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standavds
Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District
Cabazon, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally .accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained dn” Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the finangial-statements of the Cabazon Water
District (District), as of and for the vears ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Distei 1ct “basic finanéial statements, and have issued

our report thereon dated November 19, 2019,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audits of the ﬁn.ancml state Hents, we consndeled the Dlstuct’s mtemal
control over financial reporting (internal control) o di
the circumstances for the purpose of expr essmg
purpose of expressing an opinion on th
do not express an opinion on the effec

A deficiency in internal contro
management or employees, in the ng
detect and correct, misstatements.on a

course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
ely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in intern siich that.there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is"a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, &t important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal coutrol that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during owr audits we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we petformed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audits and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

32




Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on the Audits of Financial Statements
Performed in Aecordance with Government Auditing Standards, continued

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Governmen! Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
November 19, 2019

33




RESOLUTION NO. 2019-03

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE CABAZON WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER
TO ACCEPT INTERESTS IN REAL PROPERTY ON BEHALF OF THE DISTRICT

WHEREAS, California Government Code section 27281 provides that a governmental agency
may authorize one or more of its officers or agents to accept and consent to deeds or grants
conveying an interest in or easement upon real estate for public purposes; and

WHEREAS, the Cabazon Water District (“District”) is a public agency organized and operating
under the County Water District Law, Water Code section 30000 et seq.

WHEREAS, all other legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Boaid of Directors of the Cabazon Water
District that the General Manager of the District be authorized to accept interests in or easements
upon real estate conveyed to the District by grant deed or otherwise. By enactment of this
resolution, the District consents to recordation of Certificates of Acceptance executed on its
behalf by its General Manager accepting such real property interests, Such acceptance shall be
memorialized in a written Certificate of Acceptance substantially the following form:

“This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by the deed or grant
dated from to Cabazon Water District, a
governmental agency, is hereby accepted by the undersigned officer or agent on
behalf of Cabazon Water District pursuant to authority conferred by Resolution No.
2019-  of the Board of Directors of the Cabazon Water District adopted on
, 2019, and the grantee consents to the recordation thereof by
its duly authorized officer.

Dated: By: ?
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Cabazon Water District on this
day of , 2019 by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
Robert Lynk, Chair
ATTEST:

Elizabeth Lemus, Secretary




